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Huperintendent
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REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL Businesy Adminisgirater

Georpe I, Alexis
Prineipal

January 28, 2019

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Watchung Hills Regional High School District
108 Stirling Road

Warren, NJ 7059

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Watchung Hills Regional High School District Board of
Education for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the
accuracy. of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests
with the management of the Watchung Hills Regional High School Board of Education. To the best of
our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is
reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the
various funds of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an undersiandmg of
the District’s financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical, and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District’s
organizational chait, and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the Independent

~ Auditors’ Report, Management’s Discussion and Analysis and basic financial statements including the
district-wide financial staterments presented in accordance with the provisions of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements. The basic financial statements also include individual
fund financial statements, Notes to Financial Statements and Required Supplementary Information (RSI).
The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presentedona
multi-year basis. The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the
requirements of 2 CFR 200-Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (U.S, Uniform Guidance), and the State OMB Circular 15-08, “Single
Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, Stale Grants and State Aid.” Information related to this
single audit, including the auditor’s report on the internal control structure and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and findings arid recommendations, are included in the single andit
section of this report,

wwiv.whrhs.org 108 Stirling Road, Warren, New Jersey 07059 (905} 647-4800




L REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

The Watchung Hills Regional High School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria
adopted by the GASB. All funds of the District are included in this report. The Watchung Hills Regional
High School Board of Education constitutes the District’s reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels 9 through 12, These
include regular, vocational as well as special education for handicapped youngsters. The District
completed the 2017/2018 fiscal year with an enroliment of 2,014 which is 50 students less than the
previous year’s enrollment. The following details the changes in the student enroliment of the District
over the last ten years,

Fiseal Student Percent

Year Enrollment Change
2017/2018 2,014 (2.42%)
2016/2017 2,064 (3.42%)
2015/2016 2,137 (2.73%)
201412015 2,197 1.01%
201372014 2,175 1.82%
2012/2013 2,136 3.49%
2011/2012 2,064 0.34%
2010/2011 2,057 (0.57%)
20069/2010 2,069 1.77%
2008/2009 2,033 (1.36%)

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK:

The Watchung Hills Regional High School area is anticipating a reduction in enrollment. Student
population leveled off just below 2,200 in 2014/2015 but expects to decline steadily in the next three
years. The State of New Jersey continues to add costly mandates while maintaining or reducing state aid
with a 2% budget CAP. Despite the challenging environment, the Watchung Hills Regional High School
is committed to move forward with the expectation of full compliance to regulations, adherence to the
strict budget CAP and understanding of the difficult economic conditions of our taxpayers while
continuing to provide high quality instruction to students.

3. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS:

Management of the District is regponsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure
designed to ensure that the assets of the Disirict are protected from loss, thefl, or misuse and fo ensure that
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is designed fo
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived;
and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management,

As arecipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring than an
adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations
related to those programs.




3. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS (Continued):

As part of the District’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the
internal contro! structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs,
as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

4, BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accoumting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of
these budgetary confrols is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are
approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fond. The final budget
amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line jtem
basis, Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as reappropriation of fimd
balance in the subsequent year, Those amounts to be reappropriated are reported as reservations of fund
balance at June 30, 2018.

5, ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS:

The District’s accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized
on the basis of funds. These funds are explained in the “Notes to the Financial Statements”.

6. CASH MANAGEMENT:

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in the “Notes to the
Financial Statements”, Note 4, The District has adopted a cash management plan which requires it to
deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmentai
Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA) or New Jersey Cash Management Fund. GUDPA was enacted in
1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in
New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositaries
located in New Jersey, which the funds are secured in accordance with the Act or the New Jersey Cash
Management Fund,

T. RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board catries various forms of insurance, including buf not limited to general liability, automobile
liability, and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on propsrty and contents, and fidelity
bonds.




8. OTHER INFORMATION:

Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or
registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Lerch, Vinci and Higgins, LLP, was selected
by the Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was
designed to mest the requirements of the U.S. Uniform Guidance and the State OMB Circular 15-08. The
auditor’s report on the basic financial statements is included in the financial section of this report. The
auditor’s report related specifically to the single audit is included in the single audit section of this report.

9. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Watchung Hills Regional High School
Board of Education for the concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the
school district and thereby contributing their filll support to the development and maintenance of our
financial operation. The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient
and dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted, - _

e 7P
Elizabeth C. Jewstt Timothy M. Stys
Superiritendent of Schools _ School Business Administrator/

Board Secretary
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ROBERTLERCH, CPA
Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Trustees
Watchung Hills Regional High School District
Warren, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Watchung Hills Regional High School District,
as,of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Board of Education’s basic financial statements ag listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due o frand or ervor.

Auditor’s Respornsibility

Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New
Tersey, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assprance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or eror. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements,

We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinions, .

17-17 ROUTE 208  FATR LAWN, NI 07410  TELEPHONE (201) 791-7100 « EACSIMILE (201) 791-3035
WWWLVECPA.COM




Opinions

In cur opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Watchimg Hills Regional High School District as of June 30, 2018, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

Emphasis of Matter

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 the Watchung Hills
Regional High School District adopted new accounting guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board

Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemplovment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Cur
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

QOther Matiters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis, budgetary comparison information, pension information and other postemployment benefits
information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements, Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it fo be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do npot express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Watchung Hills Regional High School District’s basic financial statements. The infroductory section, combining
fund financial statements, financial schedules, statistical section, schedule of expenditures of federal awards and
schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance as required by New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit
Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Watchung Hiils Regional High School District.

The combining fund financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards and schedule of expendifures
of state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the combining fund financial statements, schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

13
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The introductory section, financial schedules and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 28, 2019 on our
consideration of the Watchung Hills Regional High School District’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Watchung
Hills Regional High School District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Watchung
Hills Regjonal High School District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliange.

/ iM ¢ y (/T m: Qf
JLERCH, VINCI & S, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Public School Accountants

EVmei

Public School Accountant
" PSA Number CS00829

Fair Lawn, New Jersey
Janvary 28, 2019
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS




WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the Watchung Hills Regional High School District’s comprehensive annual financial report
presents our discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended
on June 30, 2018. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the
District’s financial statements, which immediately follow this section,

FINANCIAL HYGHLIGHTS

Key financial highlights for the 2017-2018 fiscal year include the following:

The net position of the Watchung Hills Reglonal High School District at the close of the fiscal year
was $12,152,064.

Overall revenues were $56,352,668. General revenues accounted for $34,772,150 or 62% of all
revenues. Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services and grants and confributions
accounted for $21,580,518 or 38% of total revenues.

The school disirict had $54,877,063 in expenses for governmental activities; only $20,470,200 of these
expenses were offset by program specific charges, grants or contributions, General revenucs
{predominantly property taxes) of $34,772,150 were adequate to provide funding for these programs,

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported a combined ending
fund balance of $5,633,686. The General Fund’s fimd balance at June 30, 2018 was $5,326,57% a
decrease of $778,252 when compared with the beginning balance of $6,104,831 at July 1, 2017,

The General Fund unassigned budgetary basis fund balance at June 30, 2018 was $1,123,700 which
represents a decrease of $37,594 compared to the ending unassigned budgetary basis fund balance at
June 30, 2017 of 1,161,294,

The school district maintains a Capital Reserve balance of $2,964,200, a Tuition Resetve balance of
$200,000 and a Maintenance Reserve balance of $249,735 at June 30, 2018.

1k
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial section of the armual report consists of four parts — Independent Auditor’s Report, required
supplementary information which includes the management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the
basic financial statements, and supplemental information. The basic financial statements include two kinds
of statements that present different views of the District:

» The first two statements are district wide financial statements that provide both short-term
and long-term information about the District’s overall financial status,

» The remaining statements are fund financial stalements that focus on individual parts of the
District, reporting the District’s operations in more detail than the district-wide statements.

- The governmental funds statements tefl how basic services were financed in the short
term at well as what remains for firture spending,

- Proprietary funds statements offer short-term and long-term financial information
ahout the activities the district operated like businesses,

- Fiduclary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships in
which the Distriet acts solely as a trustee or apent for the benefit of athers to whom
the resources belong.

The financial staternents also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and
provide more detailed data. The table below presents how the various parts of this annual report are
arranged and related to one another.

.

Basic Required
Financiatl Supplementary
Statements Information

Management's
Discussion

Notes

District-Wide Fund
N to the
. Financial . _
Financial Statements Financial
Statements Statements
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The major features of the District’s financial statements, including the portion of the District’s activities
they cover and the types of information they contain are summarized below. The remainder of this
overview section of management's discussion and analysis highlights the strocture and contents of each of

the statements.

Major Features of the Distriet-Wide and Fund Fipancial Statements

District-Wide Fund Finencial Statements
Statements Governmenial Fands Proprietary Funds Fiducjary Punds
Bcope fintire district {except The astivities of the district that Activities the district finstances in which the
fiduciary funds) re not propristary or fiduciary, such as ppérates similar to a district administers
Enslructiou, special education, building private business: kesources on behalf of
maintenance and administration fenterprise funds - food komeone eise, such a8
bervice nemployment,
ayroll agency, and
indent activitics
PRequired financial Statements of net posifion  [Balance Sheet Staternent of net position {atements of
Statements Statement of activities tatement of revennes, Statement of revenues, duciary net position,
xpenditures and changes in kxpetises, and changes in Statement of changes
und balances fund net position in fiduciary net position
Staternent of cash flows
\Accounting Basizand  |Accreal accounting and Modified accrual accounting \Accrual accounting and Accrual aceounting
Mensurement focus poonomic resourees focus  nd cwrrent financial focus econommic resources foous

End £CONONIc resources

Qcus

Jated lability is due and payable.

Type of asset/liobility  [AH assets, deferred outflows/ Generally assets and deforred outflows A1 assets, deferved owtflows/ AU asscls, deforred out-
[mformation inflows of resources and of resources ars expected to be nflows of resources end liab-  [Nowsfinflows of re-
libilities, both financiai and  used up and iiabilities and deferred Eiitics, both financial and seurces and labilities,
capital, shori-term and inflows that come due during the year  pepital and shott-term and both short-term and
ong-term br soon thereaftor; no capital assets long-term ong-term funds do
pr tong-terns liabilities Incloded not ewrrently confain
papital assels.
[Type of inflow/outflow [All revenues and expenses evennes for which cash isreceived Al revenues and expenses All additions and
Enformation during vear, regardless of uring or soon after the end of the during the year, repardless Kedications during the
wwhen cash is received or ear; expenditures when goods or bf when cash is received year, regardiess of when
Paid crvices have bean recoived andthe  Jor paid,

lcash is received or paid.

District-Wide Financial Statements

The district-wide statements report information sbout the District as 2 whole using accounting methods
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the
District’s assefs and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the
statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two district-wide statements report the District’s net position and how they have changed. Net position
— the difference between the District’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, labilities and deferred
inflows of resources -- is one way to measure the District’s financial health or position.
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

District-Wide Financial Statements (continued)

s Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position are an indicator of whether its
financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

s To assess the overall health of the Disirict you need to consider additional non-financial
factors such as changes in the District’s property tax base and the condition of school
buildings and other facilities.

In the district-wide financial statements the District’s activities are shown in two categories:

v Govermmentol activities — Most of the District’s basic services are included here, such as
tegular and special education, transportation, administration and plant operations and
maintenance. Property taxes and state ald finances most of these activities,

»  Business type activities— These funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private businesy enterprises. The District’s Food Service
Buterprise Fund is included under this category.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financlal statements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds — focusing on s
most significant or “major” fands -- not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District
uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs:

»  Some funds are required by State law and bond covenunts,

»  The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or
to show that it is propetly using certain revenues (federal and state grants),

The District has three kinds of funds:

» Governmental Funds — Most of the District’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which
generally focus on {1} how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and
out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending., Consequently, the governmental
funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps to determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near fiture to finance the District’s programs, Because
this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the district-wide statements, we
provide additional information at the botfom of the governmental funds statements that explains the
relationship (or differences) between them.

s Proprietary Funds — Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the district-wide statements.
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Enterprise Funds ~These funds are established to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated imtent s that costs of
providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis are financed or recovered
primarily through user charges, The District currently has only one enterprise fund,

» Fiduciary Funds — The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others. The District is
responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes and
by these to whom the assets belong., All of the District’s fiduciary activities are reporfed in a separate
statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. We exclude these
activities from the district-wide financial statements because the Disirict canmot use these assets fo finance
its operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
district-wide and fund financial statements, The notes to the financial statements can be found following
the basic financial statements,

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the District’s budget process, The District adopts an
apnual expenditure budget for the general, special revenuve and debt service funds. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for these funds as required supplementary information. The
required supplementary information can be found following the notes fo the financial statements.

 Combining statements and schedules are presented immediately following the major badgetary
comparisons.

DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Changes in Net Position may serve over tine as a nseful indicator of a povernment’s financial position. In
the case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded Habilities by $12,152,064 as of
June 30, 2018, See the following statement of net position.

By far the largest portion of the District’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets {e.g,, land and
improvements, buildings and improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment), less any refated debt used
to acquire those assets that are still owtstanding, The District uses these capital assets to provide services to
its students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the District’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these Habilities.
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Statement of Net Position
As of Jupe 30, 2018 and 2017

Assets
Current and Other Assets
Capital Agsets

Totul Assets

Deferred Ouitlows of Resources

Dieferred Charge on Refunding of Dabt
Deferred Amounts on Net Pension Liability

Total Deferred OQutflows of Resources

Toial Assets and Deferved Ontfiows of
Resources

Lisbilities
Long-Term Liabilities
Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Amounts on Net Pension Liability

Total Deferved Inflows of Resources

Tatal Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of
Resonrces

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Resiricted
Unrestrioted

Total Net Position

Governmental

Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
018 2017 2018 2017 f18 2017

$ 5919972 § 7,060,931 $ 303499 § 285443 § 6223471 § 7346374
49,612,129 50,601,143 358810 195,709 49970939 50,796,854
55,532,101 37,662,076 662,300 481,152 56,194,410 58,143 228
559,245 688,245 - - 559,245 688,245
3,023,028 4,352,122 - - 3,023,028 4,352,122
3,582,273 5,040,367 - - 3,582.273 5,040,367
52,114,374 62,702,443 662,309 481,152 59,776,683 63,183,595
44,544 172 50,972,127 44,544,172 50,972,127
789,694 1,063,778 41,585 27,847 §31,294 1,091,622
45333 871 52035902 41,595 27,847 45375466  52.063,749

2,249,153 - - - 2,249 153 -

2,249,153 - - - 2,249,153 -
47,583,024 52,035,902 41,595 27,847 47,624,619  52.063,749
17,221,912 15,563,886 358,810 195,709 17,580,722 15,759,595
3452419 3,510,769 3,452,419 3,510,769
{9.142.981y  (8,408,114) 261,904 257,596 {8.881,077) _ (8,150,518)
$ 11,531,350 § 10,666,541 $ 620,714 3 453,305 § 12,152,064 § 11,119,846
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Managementi’s Discussion and Analysis

Changes in Net Posifion
for the Fiscal Years Ended Jure 30, 2018wt 2017

Governmental Business-Tyjpe
Astivities Activitley Fois}
2018 1 2018 2011 8 an
Revenues
Brogram Revenues
Charges fpr Services H 7236473 8 6,796,593 § 1,i10318 8 1,038,559 § 8346797 % 7,835,552
Operating CGrants and Contributions 13,233,721 14,237,65% 13,233,721 14,237,65%
Generdl Revenues
Property Taxes 33,705,203 32,533,994 33,708,203 32,533,954
Stete Aid 736,211 410,436 TIE2TT 410,436
Other . 330,670 482872 - - 330670 482872
Totat Revenues 55,242,350 $4.462.004 1,1l03i8 1,038 559 56,352,668 §5,500,563
Expenses \
Tostraction
Regular 12,285,682 23,869,750 22,285,682 23,869,760
Speoial Education 7,358,644 7,218,563 7,358,644 7,210,563
Other fnsteuetion 29,315 36,870 29,355 16,870
Schaol Sponsored Activities znd Athletice 2,133,492 2,168,611 2,133,492 2,168,611
Support Services
Student and Instruction Related Services 1,702,787 7.479,738 i A sl 1479738
Genera} Adwdnistration 1,259,590 1,331,125 1,259,590 EI3L125
Schoof Adsministration Services 2,804,421 2,811,870 2,804,421 28131870
Plant Operution end Malntenmce 6032423 5,337,514 6,032,423 5337514
Pupil Transporiation 2,561,898 2,353,253 2,561,898 2353253
Business and Other Support Services 1,495,784 1,652,618 1,495,784 1,652,013
Interest on Long- Term Dbt 1,213,027 1,287,144 1,212,007 1,287,144
Food Services " - 1,019,159 958,188 1,618,159 068,188
Tatad Expenses 34,877,063 55,538,166 1,019,159 968,138 35,896,222 56,506,654
Change in Net Position 365,287 {1,076,462) 91,159 70,371 456,446 {1,006,001)
Net Paslﬁm-l, Beginuing of Year 10,666,541 11,342,026 453505 382,934 11,119,846 11,724,960
Prior Perind Adjustment 499,522 400,977 76,250 - 575,712 480977
Net Position, Ead of Year 3 {[531350 § 10,656,54; § 520714 § 453,305 § 12,152064 $ 15119846
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Governmental Activities. The District’s total governmental activities’ revenues, which includes State and

. Federal grants, were $55,242.350 for the fiscal year ended Fune 30, 2018, Property taxes of $33,705,203
represented 61% percent of revenues. Another significant portion of revenues came from State aid; total
State, Federal and focal aid was $13,969,998. The other major source of revenues is charges for services
which includes tuition from other LEAs predominately from the Green Brook Board of Education. The
District received $7,236,479 in tuition in 2017/18,

The total cost of all governmental activities programs and services was $54,877,063. The District’s
expenses are predominantly related to educating and caring for students. Instruction totaled $31,807,133
(59%) of total expenditures. Student support services, exclusive of administration, total $7,702,787 or
(14%) of total expenditures.

Total governmental activities revenues exceeded expenses increasing net position $365,287 from the

previous year,

Net Cost of Governmental Actlvities, The District’s total cost of services was $54,877,063. After
applying program revenues, derived from charges for services of $7,236,479 and operating grants and
coniributions of $13,233,721; the net cost of services of the District is $34,406,863,

Total and Net Cost of Governmental Activities
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Total Cost of . Net Cost
Services . of Services
2018 2017 2018 2017
Goversmental Activities
Instruction
Regular $ 227285682 § 23,869,760 § 9,304,759 § 10,043,678
Special Education 7,358,644 7,210,563 3,743,245 3,696,760
Other Instraction . 29,315 36,870 19,675 23,636
School Sponsored Activities and Athletics 2,133,492 2,168,611 1,550,970 1,535,859
Support Services
Stdent and Instruction Related Services 7,702,787 71,479,738 5,811,653 5,520,322
Gleneral Administration 1,259,590 1,331,125 1,126,999 1,207,190
School Administration Services 2,804,421 2,811,870 2,339,782 2,414,053
Plant Operation and Maintenance 6,032,423 5,337,514 5,796,873 5,254,503
Pupil Transportation 2,561,898 2,353,253 2,240,092 2,086,785
Central and Other Support Services 1,495,784 1,652,018 1,259,788 1,433,844
Interest on Debt and Other Charges 1,213,027 1,287,144 1,213,027 1,287,144
Total Governmental Activities $ 54877063 § 55538466 % 34,406,863 S5 34,503,814
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Business-Type Activities — The District’s total business-type activities revenues were $1,110,318 for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. Charges for services accounted for 100% of total revenues,

The total cost of all business-iype activities programs and services was §$1,019,150. The District’s
expenses are related to Food Service programs provided to all students, teachers and administrators within
the District.

Total business-type activities revenues exceeded expenses, increasing met position by $91,159 from the
previous year's balance.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, cutflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the District’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental fumds as well. As the
District completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $5,633,686. At
Fune 30, 2017, the fund balance was $6,546,762.  This decrease wag due to the utilization of capital
reserve monies for the District’s construction projects and debt service payments.

Revenues for the District’s governmental funds were $49,264,960 while total expenses were $50,768,036.
General Fund - The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District and includes the primary

operations in providing educational services to students from grades 9 through 12 including pupil
transportation activities and capital outlay projects.

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund Revenues.

Fiscal Fiscal Amount of Percent
Year Ended Year Ended Increase Increase
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Local Sources:

Property Taxes § 30,506,702 § 28,333,368 § 1,173,334 4.00%
Tuition 7,236,479 6,796,993 439,486 6.47%

Miscellaneous 325,240 473,625 (148,385) -31.33%
State Sources 6,749,986 5,899,187 850,799 14.42%
Total (General Fund Revenues $ 44818407 § 42,503,173 § 2.315,234 5.45%

Total General Fund Revenues increased by $2,315,234 or 5% over the previous year,

Property taxes increased 4% over the previous year. Tuition revenue increased by $439,486. Stafe aid
revenues increased $850,799, primarily due to an increase in the TPAF pension contribution,
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

‘The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund ekpﬁnditures.

Fiscal Fiscal Amount of Percent
Year Ended Year Ended Increase Increase
June 30, 2048  June 34, 2017 {Decrease} {Decrease)

Instruction $ 25422915 § 24671352 § 745,563 3.02%
Support Services 17,223,770 16,732,551 451,219 2.94%
Debt Service 563,483 438,281 125,202 28.57%
Capital Outlay 1,065,220 . 697,967 367,253 52.62%
Total Expenditores $  44,275388 § 42,546,151 § 1,729,237 4.06%

In 2017-2018 General Fund expenditures and other financing uses exeeeded revenues by $778,252, Asa
result, tota] fund balance decreased to $5,326,579 at Tune 30, 2018, Afier deducting statutory transfers and
reserves, the unassigned fund balance deereased from $727,130 at June 30, 2017 to $579,704 at June 30,
2018,

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund includes all restricted Federal and State sources
utilized in the operations of the district in providing educational services to students with special needs.

Revenues of the Special Revenue Fund were $559,893, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. Federal
sources accounted for the majority of Special Revenue Fund’s revenue which represented 74% of the total
revenue for the year.

Total Special Revenue Fund revenues decreased by $10,646 from the previous year.

Expenditures of the Special Revenue Fund were $559,893. Instructional expenditures were $487,805 or
87% of total expended for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018,

Capital Projects - The capital projects expenditures and other financing uses exceeded revenues and other
finaneing sources by $136,314 decreasing fund balance to $280,514 at June 30, 2018. The decrease is
primarily due o the ongoing constroction projects within the District.

Proprietary Funds

The District maintains Enterprise Funds to account for activities that are supperted in part through user
fees.

Enterprise Funds - The District uses the Enterprise Funds to report activities related to the Food Services.
The Pistrict’s Enterprise Funds provide the same type of information found in the district-wide financial
statements, business-type activities, but in more defail. Factors conceming the finances of these Funds
h#ve already been addressed in the discussion of the District’s business-type activities.

24




WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

GENERAL FUND BUDGEYARY HIGHLIGHTS

The District's budget is prepared according to New Jersey Department of Education guidelines, and is
based on accounting for certain transactions on the basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances.
The most significant budgetary fund is the General Fund,

Over the course of the vear, the District revised the annual operating budget several times. These budget
asmendments are detailed on Exhibit C-1 of the CAFR.

CAFPITAL ASSETS

The District's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June 30,
2018 amounts to $49,970,939 (net of acoummlated depreciation). The capital assets consist of land, site
improvements, buildings, building improvements, computers, specialized machinery and various other
types of equipment, Depreciation charges for fiscal year 2017-18 amounted to $3,029,187 for governmental
activities and $37,317 for business-type activities.

Capital Assets at June 30, 2018 and 2017

Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activifies
018 2017 {18 017 201 2017

Land $ 105616 § 105616 $ 105,616 § 105616
Improvements Other Than Buildings 7,004,185 7,352,397 7,004,185 7,352,397
Buildings 70,091,241 67,765,468 70,061,241 67,765,468
Machinery and Equipment 5,375,274 5,249,043 § 677,110 3 401,134 6,052,384 5,650,177
Construction in Progress 23,975 206,357 - - 23,975 206,357
2,600,291 80,678,881 677,110 401,134 B3.277400 81,080,015
Less Accumulated Depreciation (32,088,162} _ (30,077,736) (318,300} {205,425y (33,306,462) (30,283,161
Total Capital Assets (Net) $ 49,612,129 § 50,601,145 § 358,810 § 185709 § 49,970,939 £ 50,796,854

Additional information on the District's capital assets is presented in Note 4 of this report.
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

At year end, the District’s long-term liabilities consisted of compensated absences payable of $587,087
bonds payable of $31,313,000 obligations under lease-purchase agreements of $1,069,388 and net pension
liability of $10,785,035,

Additional information of the District’s long-term labilities is presented in Note 4 of thig report,

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

Currently, the District’s budgetary finds are in solid financial condition. The District cumrenily has
$1,123,700 of unassigned general fund surplus, Additionally, the district has approximately $3 million in
Capital Reserve to cover future capital expenditures and maintains 2 maintenance reserve of approximately
$250,000. The practice of maintaining sufficient reserve balances has contributed to thc Watchung Hills
Regional High School being able to obtain and sustain a AAA credit rating,

Many factors were considered by the Distriet’s administration during the process of developing the fiscal
year 2018/2019 budget. The primary factors were the District’s projected student population, the condition
of the facility, the condition of the New Jersey economy, and the economic difficulties that face our region.
Going forward beyond 2018/2019, the District will be faced with the potential of level or reduced State aid
and & strict 2% budget CAP.

The District’s operating budget for 2018/2019 is $41,893,253. The Watchung Hills Regional High School
Beard of Education looks forward to working within the State mandated budget CAP restrictions while
maintaining a high level of academic standard; providing a high quality of education for area students at 2
reasonable cost to taxpayers.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors
with 2 general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the
money it veceives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information contact the Office
of the School Business Administrator, Watchung Hills Regional High School District, 108 Stirling Road,
Warren, NJ §7059.
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

EXHIBIT A-1

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2018
Governmentsl Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash $ 5,313,278 $ 304,395 5,617,673
Cask Held in Bscrow 72,162 72,162
Receivables, net 531,489 531,489
Inventory 2,147 2,147
Internal Balances 3,043 (3,043} -
Capital Asscts
Not Being Depreciated 129,591 129,591
Being Depreciated, Net 49,482,538 358,810 49,841,348
Total Assets 55,532,101 662,309 56,194,410
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred Charge on Refunding of Debt 559,245 559,245
Deferred Amounts on Net Pension Liability 3,023,028 - 3,023,028
Totat Deferred Qutflows of Resources 3,582,273 - 3,582273
Total Assets and Deferred Qutflows of Resources 59,114,374 662,309 59,776,683
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities 242,213 12,030 254,243
Intergovernmental Payable 16,251 16,231
Accrued Interest Payable 503,413 503,413
Unearned Revenue 27.842 29,565 57,407
Nonecugrent Liabilitics
Pue Within One Year 2,956,368 2,956,368
Due Beyond One Year 41,587,804 - 41,587,804
Total Liabilities 45,333,871 41,595 45,375,466
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Amounts on Net Pension Lizbility 2,249,153 - 2,249,153
Tota! Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,249,153 - 2,249,153
Totad Liahifities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 47,583,024 41,595 47,614,619
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 17,221,912 358,810 17,580,722
Restricted for:
Cepital Projects 3,176,091 3,176,091
Debt Service 26,593 26,593
Other Purposes 249,735 249,735
Unrestricted (%,142.981) 261,904 {8,881,077)
Total Net Position $ 11531350 p 620,714 12,152,064

‘The accompanying Notes to the Finsncial Statements are an integral part of this statement,
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EXHIBIT A-2

WATCBIUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCROQL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2018

Net (Expense) Bevenve and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Posifion
Operating
Charges for {rants and Governmenial  Business-Type
Functions/Programs Ezpenscs Services Contritmtions Activities Activitics Total
Govemmenta] Activitics: .
Instruction:
Regular § 22285682 § 6299926 § 6680997  $ (5304759 H {9304,759)
Special Education 7,358,644 936,553 2,578,846 (3,743,245) . (3,743,245}
Other Tnstruction A ; 9,540 {19,675) (19,675}
Schouot Sponsored Activities nnd Athistics 2,133,492 582,522 {1,550,970) (1,550,970)
Support Services:
Student aodd Instruction Related Serviess 1,702,787 1,891,134 (5,811,653) (5.811,653)
Qeneral Admizisiration Scrvices 1,259,550 132,591 {1,126,999) (1,126,999)
School Administeatich Services 2,804,421 464,635 {239,782} (2,339,762)
Plant Operations aad Maintenance 6,032,423 235,350 (5,796,873} (5,796,873)
Pup# Transportation 2,561,808 3ZLR0G {2,240,092) R.240,092)
Ceniral and Other Support Scrvices L443,7184 235,986 (1,239,788) 1,259,788}
Interest on Long-Term Debt and Cther Charges 1213627 - - 41,713,027 - (1,212,027)
Totn] Governmentel Activities $4.871,063 7236479 13,233,721 (34,406 863} - (34.406,363)
Business-Type Activitfes:
g Food Service 1,015,159 L1038 - - 3 81,159 91,150
Tola! Buyiness-Typs Activities 1,018,159 L1103 - - 91,139 91,159
“Total Primary Government $ 55896022 5 8345797 § 13,233,721 (34,406 863) 91,159 (34,315,704)
Quneral Revenues:
Property Taxes:
Levied for General Pyrpeses 30,506,702 30,906,702
¥evied for Debt Servics 3,198,501 3,198,501
State Aid - Unrestricted 53,548 33,348
Sinte Aid - Restricted for Delit Sarvioe 682,729 682,720
Investment Earninge 65,308 65,308
Miscellaneous Incoms 265362 - 265,362
Totaf General Rovonues 34772150 - 34,772,156
Chonge in Net Position . - 365287 - 93,158 456,446
Net Position, Beginning of Year 10,666,541 - 453305 1,119,346
‘Prior Perind Adjustment {Capital Asseis) 459,532 78,250 525772
Net Position, End of Year 5 11531350 % 620714 § 12,152,664

The accampuanying Notes to the Financial Statcments are au integral parl of this staternent




FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




EXHIBIT B-1

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Amounts reported for governmental activitics In the ststement of
net position {A-1} are different because:

GOVERNMEINTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30, 2018
Special Capital Debt Todal
General Revenue Prejects Service Governmental
Fund Fond Fund Fend - Fun
ABSETS
Cash 3 5042456 3 244372 % 6450 % 5313278
Cash Held in Escrow 72,162 72,162
Receivables, Nat
Intergovernmental 393,796 § 136,519 530,309
Other 1,180 1,180
Due from Other Funds 135,444 - - 143 135,587
Tolal Assets $ 5,571,690 § 137,69% $ 316,514 % 26,553 % 6,052,516
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabrilities
Actaunts Payable 3 219,968 3 12,245 $ 242,213
Due to Other Funds 143 96,38F % 36,020 132,544
Pryable to State Government 16,231 16,231
Unearned Revenue 15,000 12,842 - - 27,842
Totat Liabilitics 245,113 137,699 36,020 - 418,830
Fund Balances
Restricted Pund Balance
Capitaf Resesve 2,359,266 2,399,246 §
Crpital Reserve - Desipnated for Subsequent :
Year's Budget 604,934 604,934 :
Melnenonce Reserve 249,735 249,735 :
Tultion Reserve 100,000 180,008
Tuition Reserve ~ Designated for Subsequent
Year's Budpet ¢ 106,000 160,008
Excess Surphis 503,518 563,518
Excess Surphus - Desighated for
Subsequens Yeat's Budget 522,982 522,982 :
Capital Projects Fund 280,514 280,514
Bebt Service Fund % 26,593 26,593 ‘
Committed Pund Balance
Bucumbrances 38487 38,487
Assigned Fund Balance !
Encumbrances 44,119 44,119 §
Designated for Subsequent i
Year's Budget 223,854 223 834
Unassigned Furd Balance i
General Fund 579,704 - . - 579,704 1
! 4
1
‘Fotal Fund Balances 5,326,579 - 280,514 26,503 5,633,686 :
Tosak Liabilities and Fund Balances 5 5,571,690 % 137,699 % 36,534 % 26,593 }

:
i
!

Capital nssets used in gavernmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reporied in the funds, The cost
of the essets s $82,600,291 and the accumulated depreciation
i8 $32,948,162, 49,612,129

epet e e £

"The District has finenced capital assets through the issuance
of seria] bonds and Jong-term lease obligations. The interest
accrual al year end is: (503,413)

Long-term liabilities, Including bonds payable, are not due and
payahle in the current peried and thesefore are not reporied as :

1iabilitics in the finds. (Sce Note 2} (43,211,052)
Net Position of governmental activities {Exhibit A-1) ¥ _11.531350

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Stelements wre #n Integral Part of this Statement
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EXHIBIT B-2 3

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHGOL DISTRICT
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Special Capitsl - Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Furd Fund Fands ;
REVENUES
Local Sources ;
Property Tax Levy % 30,506,702 § 3108501 § 33,765,203 ;
nterest Earnings 59,954 3 5354 65,308 !
Tuition 7,236,479 7,236,479 5
Miscellaneous 265,286 3 19,308 - yi 234,670
Total - Local Sources 38,068,421 19,308 5,354 3,198,577 41,291 660
State Sources 6,749,986 126,571 682,729 7,559,236 :
Federal Sources - 414,014 - - 414014 :
Total Revenues 44,818,407 559,893 5,354 3,881,306 49,264,960 :
EXPENDITURES
Current
Regular Instraction 17,502,770 119,661 17,622 431 :
Special Education Instruction 6,060,641 368,144 6,428,785
Other Instruction 24,378 24,378 i
School Sponsored Activities and Athietics 1,835,126 . 1,835,126 :
Support Services !
- Studest and Instruction Related Services 6,100,305 72,088 6,172,893
General Administrative Scrvices 902,007 902,007
School Administrative Services 2,278,652 2,278,652
Plant Operations and Maintenance 4,142 689 405,626 4,548,315
Pupil Transportation 2,514,155 2,514,158
Central and Other Support Services 1,285,462 . 1,285,462
Debt Service
Principsl 419,680 3,311,000 3,730,639 ;
Enterest and Other Charges 143,794 1,194,525 1,338,319 :
Capital Oatlay 1,065,220 - 1,021,604 - 2,086,824 H
Total Bxpenditures 44,275,388 550,893 1,427,230 4,505,528 50,768,036
BExcess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 543.019 - (1.421,876) {624,219} {1,503,076)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) §
Transfers fn 700,000 625,709 1,325,709
Transfers Cut {1,321,271) (4,438) (1,225,709)
Capital Lease Procseds - - 590,000 - 550,000
i
Total Other Financing Sources and (Uses) (1,321.271) - 1,285,562 625,709 £90 000 {
Net Change in Fund Balances {778,252) - {136,314) 1,490 {513,076}
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 6,104,831 - 416,828 25,103 6,346,762
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 532650 § - 3 280,514 260,593 § 5,633 686

‘The accompatyitg Nofes to the Pinancial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT B-3
WATCHEUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENY OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUN. 30, 2018

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Fands (Exhibit B-2) $ {913,078)

Amounts reparted for povernmental sotivities in the statement
of activities {A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of thoss assets is alloented over their estimated usefid lives s deprecintion expense,

Depreciation Expense 5 (3,029,187}
Capital Ouflays

2,086,824

(942,363)

The net effect of various misceifaneous transactions invelving capital assets (i.e. salcs, donations)
is to inerease (decrease) net position, These transactions are tiot reporicd in the govermnmental funds
financial staternents.

Loss on Disposal of Capital Asseis (346,175)

Tie issuance of jong-term debt (e.g., bonds, feases) provides cument finencial resources 1
govemmental finds, while the repayment of the principal of longterm debt consumes the cureat
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issusnce costs, premiums, discounts, and
similar Rems when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amontized in the
stafement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the trentment of
tong-term debt and related items.

Capital Leass Proceeds _ {590,000)

Repayment of debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, buk the repaymient reduces
long-term liahilities in the statement of pet position and s not reported in the Statument of aotivities,

Payment of Principal
Serial Bonds 3,311,000
Lease Purchase Agreements 419,689

P el e Y

3,736,689
The issuance of refending bonds provides ourrent financial eesources to the governmentat
funds, while the repayment of the refanded bonds uscs those crarent financtal resources of
govermmental funds, Neither iransactions, however, has any effect on net position. Also,
governmentaf flinds report the offont of issunnce costs, premiurns gnd other such iems
related fo the refunding bonds when they are first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and ammortized in the statement of selivitios,

Amortization of Bond Promium 208,099
Amortization of Deferred Charge on Refanding {125,000}
79,099
In the statement of activitics, interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities is accrued,
regardless of when due. In the governmental finds, interest is reporied when due.  The acorusd
interest is an addition in the reconcitiation. 46,193

In the gintement of activities, eartain operating expenses, e.g, compensated absences are

measured by the amounts eamed during the year, In the governmental funds, however, expenditures

for theye Hems are reported in the amount of financiaf resources ased (paid). When the eamned amount

exceeds the paid amount, the difference is reduction in the reconeiliation; when the paid amount

exceeds the eamed ammount the differerce is an addition te the reconeilintion, 2,301

In the statement of nctivitics, pension expenses are measurcd by the Hability accrued during the
year, Inthe governmental funds, kowever, sxpenditures are reported in the amount of {inancial
resources used (paid).

Increase in Pension Expense - Public Employees' Refitement System {501,380}

Change in Net Position of Governmental Actlvities (Exhibit A-2) $ 365,287

The aecompanyitg Notes 1o the Financial Statemonts are an integral part of this smmréaelni




WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL, DISTRICT
FOOD SERVICE, ENTERPRISE FUND

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2618
ASSETS

Cutrent Assets

Cash

Inventory

Total Current Assets
Capital Assets *

Furniture, Machinery, and Equipment
Less: Accumutated Depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets

Tofal Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Due To Other Funds
Unearned Revenue

Total Current Liabilities

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assels
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
iz

EXHIBIT B-4

$ 304,395
2,147

306,342

677,110
{312,300}

358,810

' 665,352

12,030
3,043
29,563

44,638

358,810
261,904

$ 620,714




EXHIBIT B-5

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
FOOD SERVICE ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Daily Sales- Non-Reimbursable Programs 3 1,110,318
Total Operating Revenues 1,110,318
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of Sales - Non-Reimbursable Programs 441,049
Salaries and Benefits 324,821
Management Fee 54,718
Miscellaneous 161,254
Depreciation 37,317
Total Operating Expenses 1,019,159
Operating Income 91,159
Net Position, Beginning of Year } 453,305
Prior Period Adjustment {Capital Assets) 76,250
Net Position, End of Year $ 620,714

LA b S

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT B-6
WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
FOOD SERVICE ENTERPRISE FUND '
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received from Customors $ L117,735

Cash Payments to Employees for Salaries and Benefits (324,821)

Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (651,568)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 141,346

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assefs (124,168)

Net Cash {Used for) by Capital and Related Financing Activities (124,168)
Net Change in Cash _ 17,178
Cash, Beginning of Year 287,217
Cash, End of Year ) _ % 304,395

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income 3 91,159
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income fo '
Net Cash Provided for Operating Activities

Depreciation 37,317
Change in Assets and Liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory (148)
Increase/(Decrease) in Unearned Kevenue 7417
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable 6,331
Increase/(Decrease) in Due to/from Other Punds (730
Total Adjustments 50,187
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 8 141,346

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL BIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

EXHIBIT B-7

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 36,2018
Unemployment
Compensation Scholarship
Trust Fund Fund Agency Fond
ASSEFS
Cash g 299,091 $ 67,683 $ 211,372
Due from Other Frmds - - -
Total Assets 299,091 67,683 $ 277,372
LIABILITIES
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings b3 36,509
Intergovernmental Accounts Payable 4,761 .
Due to Student Groups - - 240,863
Total Liabilities 4,761 - 3 277,372
NET ASSETS
Held In Trust For Unemployment
Compensation Claims and Other Purposes 3 294330 5 67,683

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2618

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employees
Donations
Interest
Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Scholarships
Unemployment Compensation Claims

Total Deductions

Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

EXHIBIT B-8

Unemployment
Compensation Scholarship
Trust Fund Fund
$ 29,640
$ 42,713
- 487
29,640 43,200
17,000
35,117 -
35,117 17,000
(5.477) 26,200
269,807 41,483
$ 294,330 $ 67,683

The accompanying Notes fo the Financial Statements are an integral part of this staterent
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A, Reportine Entity

The Watchung Hills Regional High School District (the “Board” or the “District™) is an instrumentality of the State of New
Jersey, established to function as an education institution. The Board copsists of nine elected officials from Warren
Township, Long Hill Township and the Borough of Watchung and one appointed representative from Green Brook Board of
Education. The Board is responsible for the fiscal control of the District. A superintendent of schools is appointed by the
Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District, Under existing statutes, the Board's duties and powers
include, but are not limited to, the development and adoption of a school program; the establishment, organization and
operation of schools; and the acquisition, maintenance and disposition of school property.

The Board also has broad financial responsibilities, including the approval of the annual budget and the establishment of a
system of accounting and budpetary controls.

The reporting entity is composed of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that are mcluded to
ensure that the financial statements of the District are not misleading. The primary government consists of all funds,
departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the District. For the Watchung Hills Regional High
School District this includes general operations, food service and student related activities of the District.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable. The District is
financially accountable for an organization if the District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s goveming hoard
and (1) the District is able to significantly influence the programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or
(2) the District is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization’s resources; the District is legally obligated or
has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization; or the
District is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally
dependent on the District in that the District approves the budget, the issuance of debt or the levying of taxes. Based on the
foregoing criteria, the District has no component units, Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting
. entity as a component unit.

B. New Accounting Standards

During fiscal year 2018, the District adopted the following GASB statements:

» GASB No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, The
primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments
for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves
information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided
by other entities.

» GASB No. 85, Omnibus 2017. The objective of this Statement is to address practice issues that have been identified
during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics
including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and post-
employment benefits {pensions and other post-employment benefits (OPEB)).

s GASB No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve
consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for
transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing resources —~ resources other than
the proceeds of refunding debt are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This
Statement also improves accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extingunished and
notes to financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance,
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. New Accounting Standards (Continued)

Other accounting standards that the District is currently reviewing for applicability and pofential impact on the financial
statements inchude;

GASB No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, will be effective with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. The objective of this
Statement is fo improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial
reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. This Statement established criteria for identifying
fiduciary activities of all state and local governments.

GASB No. 87, Leases, will be effective with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, The objective of this Statement is
to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for
leases by governments, This Statement increases the usefulness of governments® financial statements by requiring
recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.

GASB No, 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements, will be
effective beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve
the information that is disclosed in notes to government financial statermnents related tfo debt, including divect
borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing
information related to debt. This Statement will improve financial reporting by providing users of financial
statements with essential information that currently is not consistency provided, In addition, information about
resources to liquidate debt and the risks associated with changes in terms association with debt will be disciosed.

GASB No. 89, Accounting for Interest Costs Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period, will be effective
beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the
relevance and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and
(2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. This Statement requires
that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which
the cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus, As a result,
interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital
asset reported in a business-type activity or enterprise fund. '

C. Basis of Presentation - Finaneial Statements

The financial statements include both district-wide financial statements (based on the District as a whole) and fund financial
staternents' (based on specific District activities or objectives). Both the district-wide and fund financial statements
categorize activities as either governmental activities or business-type activities. While separate district-wide and fund
financial statements are presented, they are interrelated. In the district-wide financial statements, the governmental activities
column incorporates data from governmental funds while business-type activities incorporate data from the District’s
enterprise finds, Fiduclary funds are excluded from the district-wide financial statements,
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34,2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements (Continuned)

District-Wide Financial Statements

The district-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on
all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Board of Education. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial
statements. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity bas been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by property taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. In the statement of net position,
both the governmental and business-type activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b)
reflect on a full acerual economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term
debt and obligations.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include 1) charges fo customers or other governmental entities, including other school disfricts, who purchase, use,
or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a given function or segtnent and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Property taxes, unrestricted
state aid and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the district-wide financial statements. Exceptions
{o this general rule are charges between the Board’s proprietary and fiduciary funds since elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the vatious functions concerned.

Fund Financial Statemenis

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprictary, and fiduciary activities, even though the latter
are excluded from the district-wide financial statements. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major individual
governmental and enterprise funds, each reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. The District considers all of its
governmental and enterprise funds to be major funds,

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the School District’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
District, except those to be accounted for in another fund,

The special revenue fimd accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes, This fund accounts for federal, state and Jocal financial programs, with the exception of grants
for major capital projects and the child nutrition programs.

The capital projects fund accounts for the proceeds from the sale of bonds, lease purchases and other revenues used
for the acquisition or construction of capital facilitics and other capital assets, other than those financed by the
proprietary funds.

The debt service fund accounts for the accumulation of resources that are restricted, committed or assigned for the
payment of principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 'ACCOUNTE\TG POLICIES (Continued)

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements (Coatinued)

Fand Financial Statements (Continued)

The District reports the following major proprietary fiund which is organized to be self-supporting through user charges:

The food service fund accounts for the activities of the school cafeferia, which provides food service to students as
well as a la carfe and catering services for teachers and special events,

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

The fiduciary trust funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for state unemployment insurance
claims and for private donations for scholarship awards. All resources of the funds, including any earnings on
invested resources, may be used to support the intended purpose. There is no requirement that any portion of these
resources be preserved as capital.

The fiduciary agency funds account for assets held by the District as an agent for student activities and for payroll
deductions and withholdings. The funds for the student activities fund are solely for noninstructional student
activities that are supported and controlled by student organizations and clubs for which school administration does

not have management involvement. The payroll funds are held to remit employee withholdings to respective state,
federal and other agencies,

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year
are referred to as either “due to/from other funds™ (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other
funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans), Al other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due
to/from other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the district-wide financial statements as “internal balances”,

Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data may have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current
year’s presentation,

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and basis of
accounting, Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current financial resources or
economiic resources, The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial
statements.

The district-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements with the exception of the agency fund which
does not have a measurement focus, All assets, all liabilities and afl deferred outflows/inflows of resources associated with
these operations (with the exception of the fiduciary funds) are included on the Statement of Net Position. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (ie. when they are both
measurable and available). Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Board considers revenues to be available
if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
basis of accounting, with the exception of debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences
and claims and judgments which are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources.

Property taxes, tuition, unrestricted state aid, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Entitlements (formula-type
grants and aid) ate recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time requirements, and the
amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source. Expenditure-driven grants and
similar awards (reimbursement-type grants and awards) are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have
been incurred and all other eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor or provider have been met, and the amount is
received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source. All other revenue items are considered to
be measurable and available only when cash is received by the District.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Board’s policy to use restricted resources first,
then unrestricted resources as they are needed,

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred QOutflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance

1. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are reported at fair value and are limited by N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37.
2. Receivables

All receivables are reported at their gross value, and where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected
to be uncollectible.

3. Inventories

The cost of inventories of the governmental fund types are recorded as expenditures at the time individual inventory items
are purchased.

Food Service Fund inventories, are valued at cost, using the first-in first-out (FIFO) method and consist of food and
expendable supplies. The cost of such inventories is recorded as expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
‘NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred OQutflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

4. Restricted Assels

Certain assefs are classified as restricted on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate bank accounts and/or
their use is limited by state or county regulations for capital projects and/or Lease-Purchase Agreements for capital projects
and/or certificates of participation, principal and inferest,

5. Capital Asseis

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the district-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Board as assets with an initial,
individual cost of $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. The District was able to estimate the historical
cost for the initial reporting of these capital assets through back trending. As the District constructs or acquires additional
capital assets each period, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at
acquisition value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add fo the value of the
asset or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed,

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated, The other property, plant, and equipment of the District is
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Land faprovements : 15-20
Buildings and Building Improvements 20-40
Machinery and Equipment 5-20
Vehicles 8

6. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net
position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until
then. The Board has two items which arise only under the accrual basis of accounting that quslify for reporting in this
category. One item is the deferred amount on refunding of debt which results from the loss on a debt refunding reported in
the district-wide statement of net position. Deferred amounts on debt refunding result from the loss on the transaction when
the debt’s reacquisition price is greater than the canying value of the refunded debt. These amounts are deferred and
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt, The other item that qualifies for reporting in this
category is the deferred amounts on net pension Hability, Deferred amounts on net pension liability are reported in the
distriet-wide statement of net position and result from: (1) differences between expected and actual experience; (2) changes
in assumptions; (3) net difference between projected and actual investment eamnings on pension plan investments; {(4)
changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions; and (5)
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date. These amounts are deferred and amortized over future years.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continned)

F. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)
6. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued)

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position
that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Board
has one type of item which arises under the accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the
deferred amounts on net pension lability. Deferred amounts on net pension liability are reported in the district-wide
statement of net position and result from: (1) differences between expected and actual experience; (2) changes in
assumptions; (3) net difference between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments; and (4)
changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions. These
amounts are deferred and amortized over fiture years,

7. Compensated Absences

It is the District’s policy to permit employees to accumulate (with certain restrictions) earned but unused vacation and sick
leave benefits. A long-term liability of accumulated vacation and sick leave and salary related payments has been recorded
in the governmental activities in the district-wide financial statements, representing the Board’s commitment to fund such
costs from future operations. Proprietary Funds do not permit the accrual of unused vacation, personal and sick leave. A
liability is reported in the governmental funds only to the amount actually due at year end as a result of employee
resignations and retirements,

8. Pensions

In the district-wide financial statements, for purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
the retirement systems sponsored and administered by the State of New Jersey and additions to/deductions from these
retirement systems® fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the retirement
systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value,

In the governmental fund financial statements, net pension liabilities represent amounts normally expected to be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources for required pension contributions that are due and payable at year end.
Pension expenditures are recognized based on contractual pension contributions that are required to be made to the pension
plan during the fiscal year.

9. Long-Term Obligations

In the district-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial staternents, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as lisbilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund type statement of net position. Gains resulting from debt refundings are classified as deferred inflows of
resources and losses are reported as deferred outflows of resources. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Gains and losses resulting from debt refundings are
also deferred and amortized over the life of the refunded bonds or new bonds whichever is less using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported including the unamortized bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs (other than
for prepaid insurance) are treated as an expense.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance
costs, during the current period, The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received
on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing
uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

16, Net Position/Fund Balance
District-Wide Statements
In the district-wide statements, there are three classes of nef position:

¢ Net Investment in Capital Assets — consists of net capital assets (cost less accumulated depreciation) reduced by
outstanding bafances of related debt obligations fiom the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources atfributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets or related debt also should be included.

o Restricted Net Position — reports net position when constraints placed on the residual amount of noncapital assets
are either externaily imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation,

e Unrestricted Net Position - any portion of net position not already classified as either net investment in capital
assets or nef position — restricted is classified as net position — unrestricted.

Governmental Fund Statements

Fund balance categories are designed to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on the District’s fund balance
more transparent. These categories are comprised of a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound
to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds,

Restricted Fund Balance — Amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors, bondholdets, and
higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legisiation.

Capital Reserve — This restriction was created by the District in accordance with NJAC 6A:23A-14.1 to fund future
capital expenditures.

Capital Reserve - Designated for Subsequent Year's Budget — This designation was created to dedicate the portion of
capital reserve fund balance appropriated in the adopted 2018/2019 District budget cextified for taxes.

Maintenance Reserve — This restriction was created by the Board in accordance with NJAC 6A:23A-14.2 to
accumulate funds for the required maintenance of school facilities in accordance with the EFCA (NJSA 18A:7G-9)
for a thorough and efficient education.

Tuition_Reserve — This restriction was created in accordance with NJAC 6A:23A-17,1(F)8 to reﬁ;resent foreseeable
future tuition adjustments for the 2017/2018 contract year and is required fo be liquidated in the second year following
the contract year with any remaining balance related to that contract year to be reserved and budgeted for property tax
relief,

Tuition Reserve — Designated for Subsequent Year's Budget — This restriction was created in accordance with NJAC

6A:23A-17.1(F)8 to represent foreseeable future tuition adjustments for the 2016/2017 contract year that is appropriated
in the 2018/2019 original budget cextified for taxes.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)
10. Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

Governmental Fund Statements (Continued)

Restricted Fend Balance (Continued)

Excess Surplus — This restriction was created in accordance with NJSA 18A:7F-7 to represent the June 30, 2018
audited excess surplus that is required to be appropriated in the 2019/2020 original budget certified for taxes,

Excess Surplus — Designated for Subsequent Year’s Budget - This restriction was created in accordance with NISA
18A:7F-7 to represent the June 30, 2017 audited excess surplus that was appropriated in the 2018/2019 original
budget certified for taxes.

Capital Projects —~ Represents fund balance restricted specifically for capital acquisitions and improvements in the
Capital Projects Fund.

Debt Service — Represents fund balance restricted specifically for the repayment of long-term debt principal and interest
in the Debt Service Fund.

Committed Fund Balance — Amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using its highest level of
decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
government takes the same highest level action to remove or change the constraint.

Encumbrances — Represents outstanding purchase orders at year end for contracts awarded by formal action of the Board
of Trustee’s for specific purposes from available resources of the current year for which the goods and materials have
not yet been received or the services have not yet been rendered at June 30.

Assigned Fund Balance — Amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; infent can be expressed by the
governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the authority.

Encumbrances — Represent outstanding purchase orders for goods or services approved by management for specific
purposes from available resources of the current year for which the goods and materials have not yet been received or
the services have not yet been rendered at June 30.

Designated for Subsequent Year’s Budget — This designation was created to dedicate the portion of fund balance
appropriated in the adopted 2018/2019 District budget certified for taxes.

Unassigned Fund Balance — Represents fund balance that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific
purposes within the governmental funds.

In the general operating fund and other governmental funds (capital projects and debt service fund types), it is the Distriet’s
policy to consider restricted resources to have been spent first when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted (i.e., committed, assigned or unassigned) fund balances are available, followed by committed and
then assigned fund balances. Unassigned amount are used only after the other resources have been used.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

11. Fund Balance Policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the pature of any limitations requiring the use
of resources for specific purposes. The Board of Education itself can establish Himitations on the use of resources through
either a commitment (committed find balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance),

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a
formal action of the Board’s highest Ievel of decision-making authority. The Board of Trustees is the highest level of
decision-making authority for the Board that can, by adoption of a resolution or formal Board action prior to the end of the
fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the resolution remains in place until a similar
action is taken (the adoption of another resolution) to remove or revise the limitation.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the Board for specific purposes but do not
meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The Board has authorized the School Business Administrator/Board
Secretary to assign fund balance. The Board may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to
cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year's appropriated budget. Unlike
commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarity. In other words, and additional action does not normally have to
be taken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to either remove
or revise a commitment.

F. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

1. Program Revenues

Amounts reported as program revenues in the district-wide statement of activities include 1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods or services, provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and confributions.
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all property taxes, unrestricted state aid, investment earnings and miscellaneous revenues,

2, Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied pursuant to law and are collected by the municipality and are fransfetred to the District as
requested. Property tax revenues are recoguized in the year they are levied and become available. Property taxes collected
in advance of the year-end for which they are levied and transferred fo the District are reported as deferred inflows of
resources. The tax bills are mailed annually in June by the municipal tax collector and are Jevied and due in four quarterly
installments on August 1, November 1, February 1 and May 1 of the fiscal year, When unpaid, taxes or any other municipal
lien, or part thereof, on real property, remains in arrears on April 1% in the year following the calendar year levy when the
same became in arrears, the tax collector of the municipality shall, subject to the provisions of New Jersey Statute, enforce
the lien by placing the property on a tax sale, The municipality may institate annual “in rem” tax foreclosure proceedings to
enforce the tax collection or acquisition of title to the property.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses (Continued)

3, Tuifion Revenues and Expenditures

Tuition Revenues - Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs, The charges are
subject to adjustment when the final costs are determined and certified by the State Department of Education.

Tuition Expenditures ~ Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2016-2017 and 2017-2018 were based on rates established by the
receiving district. “These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been certified by the State Department of
Education. <

4, Proprietary Fands, Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items, Operating revenues aund expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in conmection with a proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the food service enterprise fund are charges to customers
for sajles and services, Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets, All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

NOTE 2 RECONCILIATION OF DISTRICT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the district-wide
statement of net position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total governmental funds and net
position~ governmental activities as reported in the district-wide statement of net position. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “long-term Habilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details are as follows:

Bonds Payable $ 31,313,000
Original Issuance Premium 789,662
Deferred Charge on Refunding of Debt (559,245)
Capital Leases Payable 1,069,388
Compensated Absences 587,087
Net Pension Liability 10,785,035
Deferred Amounts on Net Pension Liabilitiy

Deferred Outflow (3,023,028)

Deferred Inflow 2,249,153

Net Adjustment to Reduce Fund Balance ~ Total Governmental
Funds to Arrive at Net Position - Governmental Activities $ 43,211,082
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HEGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 390, 2018

NOTE 3 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

In accordance with the requirements of the New Jersey Department of Education (“the Department™), the District annually
prepares its operating budget for the forthcoming year. The budget, except for the general fund and special revenue fund,
which is more fully explained below and in the notes to the required supplementary information, is prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and serves as a formal plan Tor expenditures
and the proposed means for financing them. Capital lease transactions are accounted for on the GAAP basis.

The annual budget is adopted in the spring of the preceding year for the general, special revenue and debt service funds. The
District is not required to adopt an annual budget for the capital projects find. The budget is submitted to the county
superintendent for review and approval prior to adoption. Districts that have their school board members elected in
November do not have to submit their budgets that meet levy cap requirements for voter approval. Only 2 school board
decision to exceed the tax levy cap would require voter approval for the additional amount on the November ballot,

Budget adoptions and amendments are recorded in the District’s board minutes. The budget is amended by the Board of
Trustees as needed throughout the year. The budget for revenues, other resources, other uses, and fund balances is prepared
by fund source and amount. The budget for expenditures is prepared by fund, program, function, object and amount. The
legal leve] of budgetary control is established at the line item account within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as
the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant fo the minimum chart of accounts referenced in NLA.C.
6:20-2A.2(m)1. The Board approved several budgpet transfers during 2017/2018.  Also, during 2017/2018 the Board
increased-the original budget by $1,272,993. The increase was funded by additional state aid, prior year extraordinary and

nonpublic fransportation aids, grant awards, the reappropriation of prior year general fund encumbrances, and a withdrawal
of $251,350 from the capital reserve,

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the year. For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, with the exception of the lepally mandated revenue recognition of certain
state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described
m the Notes to Required Supplementary Information (RSI). Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of
formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types, Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in the governmental fimds. Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders,
contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable
appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as committed
and/or assigned fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments
related to unperformed contracts for goods and services which are reappropriated and honored during the subsequent fiscal
year. .

B. Capiial Reserve

A capital reserve acconnt was established by the District. The accumulation of funds will be used for capital outlay
expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in
the general fund annual bodget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve are restricted to capital projects in the district’s approved Long Range Facilities Plan
(LR¥P). Upon submission of the LRFP to the Department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by
appropriating finds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end of any
unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts or both, A district may also appropriate additional
amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a
special question at one of the four special elections avthorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-
14.1(g), the balance in the reserve cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its
approved LRFP.
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NOTE 3 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)
B. Capital Reserve (Continued)

The activity of the capital reserve for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Balance, July 1, 2017 - $ 3,285,931
Increased by
Interest Earnings $ 890
Deposits Approved by Board Resolution . 1,400,000
1,400,890
4,686,821
Decreased by
Withdrawal Approved by Board Resolution 251,350
Budgeted Withdrawals
Capital Outlay 150,000
Capital Projects 700,000
Debt Service 621,271
1,722,621
Balance, lune 30, 2018 § 2964200
Restricted Fund Balance
Capital Reserve $ 2,359,266
Capital Reserve Designated for Subsequent Year's Budget 604,934

$_ 2964200

The withdrawals from the capital reserve were for use in & department approved facilities project, consistent with the
district’s Long Range Facilities Plan, $604,934 of the capital reserve balance at June 30, 2018 was designated and
appropriated for use in the 2018/2019 original budget certified for taxes.

C. Maintenance Reserve

A mainfenance reserve account was established by the District. The accumulation of funds will be used for required
maintenance of school facilities expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The maintenance reserve is maintained in the
General Fund and its activity is included in the General Fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the mainfenance reserve are restricted to required maintenance activities for a school facility as reported in
the comprehensive maintenance plan. A District may appropriate funds into the maintenance reserve in the annual General
Fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end of any unanticipated revenne or unexpended
line fterm appropriation amounts or both. Pursuant to NJ.A.C, 6A:23A-14.2(g), the balance in the reserve cannot at any time
exceed four percent of the replacement cost of the school district’s school facilities for the current year.
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NOTE 3 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)
C. Maintenance Reserve (Continued)

The activity of the maintenance reserve for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Balance, July 1, 2017 ' $ 199,735
Increased by

Deposits Approved by Board Resolution 50,000
Balance, June 30, 2018 . § 249,735

D. Transfers to Capital Outlay

During the 2017/2018 school year, the district transferred $95,000 to the non-equipment capital outlay accounts. The
transfer was approved by the Executive County Superintendent in order to cover additional costs plus an allowance for
unforeseen conditions, The District has also appropriated $363,650 of additional state aid monies and $251,350 from its
capital reserve in 2017/18 o cover the cost of this project.

E. Calculation of Excess Surplus

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended, the restricted fund balance for Excess Surplus is a required
calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA).
New Jersey school districts are required to restrict General Fund fund balance in excess of 2% of budget expendifures at
the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their
subsequent year’s budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2018 is $1,026,500. Of this amount, $522,982 was
designated and appropriated in the 2018/2019 original budget certified for taxes and the remaining amount of $503,518
will be appropriated in the 2019/2020 original budget certified for taxes.

NOTE 4 DETAHLED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Cash Deposits and Investments
Cash Deposits

The Board's deposits are insured through either the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), National Credit Union
Share Insurance Fund (NCUSIF), Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) or New Jersey's Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). The Board is required to deposit their funds in a depository which is protecting such
funds pursuant to GUDPA. The New Jersey Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act requires all banks doing business i
the State of New Jersey to pledge collateral equal to at least 5% of the average amount of its public deposits and 100% of the
average amount of its public funds in excess of the lesser of 75% of its capital funds or $200 million for all deposits not
covered by the FDIC and NCUSIF.
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

A. Cash Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Cash Deposits (Continued)

Bank balances are insured up to $250,000 in the aggregate by the FDIC for each bank, NCUSIF insures credit union
accounts up to $250,000 in the aggregate for each financial institution. SIPC replaces cash claims up to a maximum of
$250,000 for each failed brokerage firm. At June 30, 2018, the book value of the Board's deposits were $6,333,981 and bank
and brokerage firm balances of the Board’s deposits amounted fo $7,660,533, The Board's deposits which are displayed on
the various fund balance sheets as "cash" are categorized as:

Depository Account

Insured $ 7,660,533

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The Board does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2018 the
Board’s hank balances were not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments

The Board is permitted to invest public funds in accordance with the types of securities authorized by N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37.
Examples of the allowable investments are bonds or other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the
United States of America; Government Money Market Mutual Funds; any obligation that a federal agency or a federal
instrumentality has issued in accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a mafurify date not greater than 397
days from the date of purchase, provided that such obligations bear a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or
other external factor; bonds or other obligations of the school district or bonds or other obligations of the local unit or units
within which the school district is located; Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date of not more than 397 days
from the date of purchase, issued by New Jersey school districts, municipalities, counties, and entities subject to the “Local
Aurthorities Fiscal Control Law,” (C.40A:5A-1 et seq.); Other bonds or obligations having a maturity date not more than 397
days from the date of purchase may be approved by the Division of Investment in the Department of the Treasury for
investment by school districts; Local Government investment pools; deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash
Management Fund established pursuant to section | of P.L. 1977, ¢.281 (C.52:18A-90.4); and agreements for the repurchase
of fully collateralized securities, if transacted in accordance with the above statute.

As of June 30, 2018, the Board had no outstanding investments,

Investment and interest earnings in the Capital Projects Fund are assigned to the Debt Service Fund in accordance with

Board policy.
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

B. Receivables

Receivables as of June 30, 2018 for the district’s individual major funds in the aggregate, including the applicable
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Special
General Revenue Total
Receivables:
Intergovermmental
Federal $ 136,120 § 136,120
State $ 137,889 399 138,288
Other 255,901 '255,901
Accounis - 1,180 1,180
Gross Receivables 393,790 137,699 531,489
Less: Allowance for
Uncollectibles - - -
Net Total Receivables $§ 393,790 $ 137,699 § 531,489

C. Unearned Revenue

Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been received, but nof yet earned.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of unearned revenue reported in the governmenta! funds
were as follows:

General Fund
Funds Received for Use in Subsequent Years $ 15,000
Special Revenue Fund ‘
Unencumbered Grant Praw Downs 12,842
Total Unearned Revenue for Governmental Funds $ 27,842
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Confinued)

D. Capital Assets

Capital agset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Balanes, Prior Period Transfers/ Balance,

July 1, 2017 Adjustments Increases Deletions Adjustments Juge 30, 2018
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets,Not Being Depreciated:
Land : 3 105,616 ' § 105,616
Cosnstruction in Progress 206,357 L 856,333 - $§ (1,038715) 23,975
Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 311,973 - 856,333 - (1,038,715) 129,591
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Tmprovements Other Than Buildings 7.352,397 § {18,991) 66,715 & (664,936} 269,000 7,004,1R5
Buildings 67,765,468 614,458 941,600 769,715 70,091,241
Machinery and Equipment ) 5,240,043 {935,945) 222176 % - - 5,375,274
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 80,366,908 459,522 1,230,491 {664,936} 1,038,715 82,470,700
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Improvements Other Than Buildings (2,163,389) (328,766) 118,761 (2,373,394)
Buildings (25,272,772) (2,299,918) (27,572,690}
Machinery and Equipment (2,641,575} - {400,503) - . {3,042,078)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (30,077,736} - (3,028, 187) 118,761 - (32,988,162)
Totat Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 50,289,172 499,522 {1,798,656} £546,175) 1,038,715 49,482,538
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net  §  50,601.145 § 499,522 $ (042,363) § (546,175) § - § 49612129

Balance, Prior Period Balance,
fuly 1, 2017 Adiustments Oroases June 30, 2018

Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Machinery and Equipment -3 401,134 151,808 124,168 % 677,110
Total Capitai Assefs Being Depreciated 401,134 151,808 124,168 §77,110
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Machinery and Equipment 205,425) {75,558) % (37,317) (318,300
Total Accnmulated Depreciation {205,425} (75,558} (37317 {318,300}
Total Capital Assets, Reing Depreciated, Net 195,769 76,250 86,851 358,816
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 195,709 § 76,250 § 86,351 § 358,810
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
1. Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the District as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Instruction
Regular $ 1,302,551
Special 181,751
Total Instruction 1,484,302
Support Services
Student and Instruction Related Services 514,962
General Administration ‘ 272,627
School Administration 121,167
Operations and Maintenance of Plant 636,129
Total Support Services - , 1,544,885
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $§ 3,029,187
Business-Type Activities:
Machinery and Equipment $ 37,317
Total Depreciation Expense-Business-Type Activities $ 37,317
E. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers
"The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2018, is as follows:
Due To/From Other Funds
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amomnt
General Fund Special Revenue Fund $ 96,381
General Fund Capital Projects Fund 36,020
Debt Service Fund Goneral Fund 143
General Fund Food Service Enterprise Fund 3,043
3 135,587

The above balances are the result of revenues earned or other financing sources received in one fund which are due to
another fund and/or expenditures paid by one fund on behalf of another fund and/or to cover cash balances which were in
an overdraft position.

The District expects all interfund balances to be liquidated within one year,
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

E, Interfund Receivables, Pavables, and Transfers (Chntinued)

Interfund Transfers
Transfer In
Capital Debt
Projects Fund Service Fund Total
Transfer Out: ,
General Fund $ 700,000 $ 621,271 $1,321,271
Capital Projecis Fund - 4,438 4438

$ 700,000 $ 625709 $1.325.709

The above transfers are the result of revenues earned and/or other financing sources received in one fund to finance
expenditures in another fund.

F. Leases

Capital Leases

The District has entered into lease purchase agreements totaling $2,109,000 for the acquisition and installation of various
equipment.

The unexpended proceeds from capital leases in the amount of $72,162 at June 30, 2018 are held with the Fiscal Agent.

The maturity schedule for the remaining lease payments for principal and interest is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2019 3 426,868 § 16,263 $ 443,131
2020 _ 267,313 10,009 277322
2021 253,053 5,476 258,529
2022 122,154 1,682 123,836

$ 1,069388 § 33,430 $ 1,102,818
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continned)

G. Long-Term Debt

General Obligation Bonds

The Board issued general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities
and other capital assets. The full faith and credit of the Board are irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal of
the bonds and the interest thereon.

Bonds payable at June 30, 2018 are comprised of the following issues:

$17,190,600, 2011 Refimnding Bonds, due in annual
installments of $1,535,000 to $1,986,000 )
through January 15, 2024, interest at 4.0% to 5.0% $10.480,600

$9,365,000, 2012 Refunding Bonds, due in annnal
installments of $2,210,000 to $2,445,000 .
through January 15, 2028, interest at 3.0% to 5.0% 9,305,000

$12,553,000, 2013 Refunding Bonds, due in annual
installments of $760,000 to $1,023,000
through January 15, 2029, interest at 2.50% to 3.50% 9,763,000

$1,970,000, 2016 Refunding Bonds, due in annual
instatlments of $180,000 to $210,000

through January 15, 2027, interest at 1,750% 1,765.000
‘Total $31.313.000

The Board's schedule of prineipal and interest for longterm debt issued and outstanding is as follows:

Governmmnental Activities:
Serial Bonds

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 2475000 $ 1,098,355 § 3,573,355
2020 2,570,000 1,014,805 3,584,805
2021 2,700,000 911,780 3,611,780
2022 2,805,000 817,155 3,622,155
2023 2,935,000 699,780 3,634,780

2024-2028 16,805,000 1,768,188 18,573,188
2029 1,023,000 35,805 1,058,805

$ 31313000 $ 6,345,368 $ 37,658,868
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

G, Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Statutory Borrowing Power

The Board's remaining borrowing power under N.J.S. 18A:24-19, as amended, at June 30, 2018 was as follows:

3% of Equalized Valuation Basis (Municipal)
Less: Net Debt Issued

Remaining Borrowing Power

H. Qther Long-Term Liabilities .

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

$ 241,440,371
31,313,000

$ 210,127,371

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, was as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1. 2017 Additions Reductions  June 30,2018 One Year

Governmental Activities: _
Bonds Payable $ 34,624,000 $ 3,311,000 $ 31,313,000 $ 2,475,000
Add: Original Izsue Premium 997,761 - 208,699 789,662 -

Total Bonds Payable 35,621,761 - 3,519,099 32,102,662 2,475,000
Obligations Under Lease Purchase 899,077 590,000 419,689 1,069,388 426,368
Compensated Absences 589,388 % 30,563 32,864 587,087 54,500
Net Pension Liability 13,861,901 501,381 3,578,247 10,785,035 -

Governmental Activity

Long-Term Liabilifies

$ 50,972,127 §

1,121,944 § 75498909 § 44544172 § 2,956,368

For the governmental activities, the liabilities for compensated absences, obligations under lease purchase and net
pension liability are generally liquidated by the general fund.

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk Mapagement

The District is exposed fo various risks of loss related to property, general liability, automobile coverage, theft of, damage to
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; student accident; termination of employees and
natural disasters. The Board has obtained commercial insurance coverage to guard against these events to minimize the
exposure to the District should they occur. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the statistical section

of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report,
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NOTE 5§ OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

A. Risk Management (Continued)

The District is 2 member of the Schoo! Alliance Insurance Fund (the “Fund”). The Fund is a risk sharing public entity pool,
established for the purpose of insuring against worker's compensation claims.

The relationship between the Board and the insurance fund is governed by contract and by-laws that have been adopted by
resolution of each unif's governing body. The Board is contractually obligated to make all annual and supplementary
contributions to the funds, to report claims on a timely basis, cooperaté with the management of the funds, its claims
administrator and attorneys in claims investigation and settlement, and to follow risk management procedures as outlined by
the funds. Members have a contractual obligation to fund any deficit of the funds attributable to a membership year during
which they were a member.

The Fund provides its members with risk management services, including the defense of and settlement of claims and to
cstablish reasonable and necessaty loss reduction and prevention procedures to be followed by the members, Complete
financial statements of the insurance fund are on file with the School's Business Administrator,

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year nor have there been any settlements in
excess of insurance coverage’s in any of the prior three years,

The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement
Method”, Under this plan the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid
to its former croployees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the
State. The following is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for
benefits paid and the ending balance of the District’s fiduciary trust fund for the current and previous two years:

Employer Employee Amount Ending
Fiscal Year Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Balance
20172018 $ 29,640 $ 35,117 3 294,330
2016-2017 30,388 49,673 299807
20152016 39,020 14,609 319,092

B. Contingent Liabilities

The District is a party defendant in some lawsnits, none of a kind unusual for a school district of its size and scope of
operation, In the opinion of the Board's Attorney the potential claims against the District not covered by insurance policies
would not materially affect the financial condition of the District.

Federal and State Awards — The Board participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or partially
funded by grants received from other governmental units, Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by the
- appropriate grantor government. If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program regulations, the
Board may be required to reimburse the grantor govemment As of Tune 30, 2018, significant amounts of grant expenditures
have not been audited by the various grantor agencies but ihe Board believes that disallowed expenditures, if any, based on
subsequent audits will not have a material effect on any of the individual governmental funds or the overall financial position
of the District.
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NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

C. Federal Avbitrage Regulations

The District is subject to Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code as it pertains to the arbitrage rebate on all tax-exempt
obligations, both long and short-term debt, Under the 1986 Tax Reform Act, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) required
that all excess earnings from investment proceeds be rebated to the IRS. Arbitrage, for purposes of these regulations, is
defined as the difference between the yield on the investment and the yield on the obligations issued. If there are excess
earnings, this amount may be required to be rebated to the IRS, At June 30, 2018, the District has not estimated its arbitrage
earnings due to the IRS, if any.

D, Emplovee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans

Plan Descriptions and Benefits Provided

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following coniributory defined benefit public employee retirement
systems (retirement systems) covering substantially all eligible Board employees:

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) — Established in January 1955, under the provisions of N.J.8.A. 43:15A to
provide coverage, including post-retirement health care, to substantially all full time employees of the State or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency provided the employee is not a member of another State-administered
retirement system. Membership is mandatory for such employees. PERS is a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit
pension plan.

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides retirement, death, and disability benefits. All
benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability
provisions of PERS.

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS:

Tier Definition
1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1,2007
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
4 Members who were eligible to enrolf on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after JTune 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55" of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 1 and 2 members
upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60" of final average
salary for cach year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reached age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching
age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tier 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tier 3 and 4 members with 25
or more years of service credit before age 62, and tier 5 members with 30 or more years of service credit before age 65.
Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires ptior fo the age at which 2 member can
receive full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier, Tier 1 members can receive an unreduced
benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred retirement is available to members who have
at least ten years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for the respective tier, :
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NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

1. Emplovee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) — Established in January 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to
provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full time certified teachers or professional staff of
the public school systems in the State. Membership is mandatory for such employees. TPAF is a cost sharing multiple
employer defined benefit pension plan with a special funding situation, by which the State is responsible to fund 100% of
local employer contributions, excluding any local employer early retirement incentive (ERI) contributions.

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J,8.A. 18A:66. TPAYF provides retirement, death, and disability benefits.
All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under the
disability provisions of TPAF. Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, afier three years of service
credit, become vested for 2% of related interest eamed on the confributions. In the case of death before retirement,
members” beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members” accounts.

The following represent the membership tiers for TPAF:

Tier ' Definition
1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011
5 Members who were oligible to envoll on or after June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55™ of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 1 and 2 members
upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60" of final average
salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reached age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching
age 65, Early retirement benefits are available to tier 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tier 3 and 4 members with 25
or more years of service credit before age 62, and tier 5 members with 30 or more years of service credit before age 65.
Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the retirement for his/her
respective tier. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least ten years of service credit and have not
reached the service retirement age for the respective tier.

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following defined contribution public employee retirement
program covering certain state and local government employees which include those Board employees who are eligible
for pension coverage.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program {DCRP) - established under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and
Chapter 103, P.L., 2008 to provide coverage to clected, certain appointed officials, and certain Board employees not
gligible for enrollment in PERS or TPAF. Effective July 1, 2007 membership is mandatory for such individuals with
vesting occurring after one (1) year of membership, DCRP is a defined contribution pension plan.
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NOTE § OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systemns and Pension Plans (Continued)
Other Pension Funds

The State established and administers a Supplemental Annuity Collective Trust Fund {(SACT) which is available to active
members of the State-administered retirement systems to purchase annuities to supplement the guaranteed benefits provided
by their retirement system. The state or local government employers do not appropriate funds to SACT.

The cost of living increase for PERS and TPAF, are funded directly by each of the respective systems but are currently
suspended as a result of reform legislation.

According to state law, all obligations of each retirement system will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should any
retirement system be terminated.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits (“Division™), issues publicly
available financial reports that inclade the financial statements and required supplementary information of each of the above
systems. The financial reports may be accessed via the New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website at

www.state ni us/treasury/pensions.

Plan Amendments

The authority to amend the provisions of the above plans rests with new legislation passed by the State of New Jersey.
Pension reforms enacted pursuant to Chapter 78, P1. 2011 included provisions creating special Pension Plan Design
Committees for TPAF and PERS, once a Target Funded Ratio (TFR) is met. The Pension Plan Design Comumittees will have
the discretionary authority to modify certain plan design features, including member contribution rate; formula for
caleulation of final compensation of fial salary; fraction used to calculate a retirement allowance; age at which a member
may be eligible and the benefits for service or early retirement; and benefits provided for disability retivement, The
committees will also have the authority to reactivate the cost of living adjustment (COLA) on pensions. However,
modifications can only be made to the extent that the resulting impact does not cause the funded ratio to drop below the TFR
in any one year of a 30-year projection period,

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the retirement systems are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles as applicable to governmental organizations. In doing so, the Division adheres to reporting requirements
established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board {(GASB).

The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and changes in net position of the pension frust
funds. Under this method, confributions are recorded in the accounting period in which they are legally due from the
employer or plan member, and deductions are recorded at the time the liabilities are due and payable in accordance with the
terms of each plan, The accounts of the Division are organized and operated on the basis of funds. All funds are accounted
for using an economic resonrces measurement focus,

Investment Valuation

The Division of Investment, Department of the Treasury, State of New Jersey (Division of Investment) manages and invests
certain assets of the retirement systems. Investments are reported at fair value. Fair value is the amount at which a financial
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The Division of Investment issues publicly available financial reports that include the financial statements of the State of
New Jersey Cash Management Fund. The financial reports may be obtained in writing to the State of New Jersey,
Department of the Treasury, Division of Investment, PO, Box 290, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0290 or at
www state nj.usftreasury/doimvest.
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NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Emplovee Retirement Svstems and Pension Plans (Confinued)

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2016, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the aggregate fanded ratio for the State administered TPAF and
local PERS retirement systems, is 33 percent with an unfunded actoarial accrued liability of 90.90 billion, The aggregate
funded ratio and unfunded accrued liability for the State-funded TPAF system is 25.41 percent and $67.6 billion, and the
aggregate funded ratio and unfunded accrued liability for local PERS is 48,10 percent and $23.3 billion, respectively.

The funded status and funding progress of the refivement systems is based on actuarial valuations which involve estimates of
the value of reported amounts and assumptions sbout the probability of events far into the future. These amounts are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the probability of
future events.

Actuarial caloulations reflect a long<term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the
retirement systems in effect at the time of each valuation and also consider the pattern of the sharing of costs between the
employer and members at that point in time. The projection of benefits for financing reporting purposes does not explicitly
incorporate the potfential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the
employer and members in the futwe.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

In the July 1, 2016 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit was used as the actuarial cost method, and the five year
average of market value was used as the asset valuation method for the retirement systems. The actuarial assumptions
included {a) an investment rate of return for the retivement systems of %65 7.00 percent and (b) projected salary increases
applied through the year 2026 of 1.65-5.15 percent based on age for the PERS and varying percentages based on experience
for TPAF. -

Employer and Employee Pension Contributions

The confribation policy is set by laws of the State of New Jersey and contiibutions are required by active members and
participating employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation with
the amount of contributions by the State of New Jersey contingent upon the Annual Appropriations Act. As defined, the
retirement systems require employee confributions based on 7.34% for PERS, 7.34% for TPAF and 5.50% for DCRP of the
employee’s annual compensation for fiscal year 2018.

Annual Pension Costs (APC)

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 for TPAF, which is a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan
with a special funding situation, the annual pension cost differs from the annual required contribution. For PERS, which isa
cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan, the annual pension cost equals contributions made, TPAF
employer contributions are made annually by the State of New Jersey to the pension system on behalf of the Boatd, PERS
employer contributions are made annually by the Board to the pension system in accordance with Chapter 114, P.L. 1997. In
the DCRP, which is a defined contribution plan, member confributions are matched by a 3% employer contribution.
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NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Employee Retivement Svstems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Annual Pension Costs (APC) (Continued)

During the fiscal vears ended June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016 the Board was required to contribute for PERS and DCRP and
the State of New Jersey, as a nonemployer coniributing entity, was required to contribute for TPAF, respectively for normal
cost pension and accrued liability contributions (including non-contributory group life insurance (NCGI)) the following
amounts:

Year Ended On-Behalf
June 30 PERS TPAF DCRP
2018 $ 429,204 $ 2,454,263 3 12941
2017 415,797 1,787,211 3,647
2016 383,093 1,301,356 6,610

In addition for fiscal years 2017/2018 and 2016/2017 the District contributed $8,191 and $2,744, respectively for PERS and
the State contributed $3,047 and $3,514, respectively for TPAF for Long Term Disability Insurance Premium (LTDI),

The PERS contributions are recognized in the governmental fund financial statements (modified accrual basis) as an
expenditure, The on-behalf TPAF contributions are recognized in the governmental fund financial statements (modified
accrual basis) as both a revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASB Statement No. 85, Omuibus 2017 (GASB No.
85). The DCRP confributions ate recognized in the governmental fund financial statements (modified accrnal basis) as an
expenditure, as well as, the district-wide financial statements (accrual basis) as an expense,

Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board $1,180,322 during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2018 for the employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members as calculated on their
base salaries. This amount has been recognized in the district-wide financial statements {(accrual basis) and the governmental
fimd financial statements (modified accrual basis) as a revenue and expense/expenditure in accordance with GASB No, 85.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, (GASB No. 68) requires participating
employers in PERS to recognize their proportionate share of the collective net pension liability, collective deferred ontflows
of resources, collective deferred inflows of resources and collective pension expense excluding that attributable to employer-
paid member contributions. The employer allocation percentages presented are based on the ratio of the contributions as an
individual employer to total contributions to the PERS during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. Employer allocation
percentages have been rounded for presentation purposes.

Although the NJ Division of Pensions and Benefits (“Division™) administers one cost-sharing multiple employer defined
benefit pension plan, separate actuarial valuations are prepared to determine the actuarial determined contribution rate by
group, Following this method, the measurement of the collective pension expense excluding that attributable to employer-
paid member contributions are determined separately for each individual employer of the State and local groups of the plan.
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NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION {Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
_ Related to Pensions (Continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

To facilitate the separate actnal valuations, the Division maintains separate accounts to identify additions, deductions, and
fiduciary net position applicable to each group. The allocation percentages are presented for each group. The allocation
percentages for each group as of June 30, 2017 are based on the ratio of each employer’s contribution to total employer
contributions of the group for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017,

At June 30, 2018, the District reported in the statement of net position (accrual basis) a lability of $10,785,035 for its
proportionate share of the PERS net pension lability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 and the
total pension lability used to caleulate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The
District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative fo the projected contributions of all patticipating governmental entities, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2017, the Disirict’s proportionate share was .04633 percent, which was a decrease of .00047
percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2016 of .04680 percent.

For the fiscal year ended Jupe 30, 2018, the District recognized in the district-wide statement of activities (accrual basis)
pension expense of $930,585 for PERS. The pension contribution made by the District during the cucrent 2017/2018 fiscal
year is the contribution that is applied to the net pension liability reporied at the end of the current fiscal year of June 30,
2018 with a measurement date of the prior fiscal year end of June 30, 2017, Since the State of New Jersey applies the
current year pension contribution towards the calculation of the net pension liability reported at the end of the current fiscal
year, which has a measurement date of the preceding fiscal year end, there is no deferred outflows of resources reported as of
June 30, 2018 for confributions made subsequent to the current fiscal year end. At June 30, 2018, the Disfrict reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS pension from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Difference Between Expected and
Actual Experience $ 253,950
Changes of Assumptions 2,172,813 3 2,164,841
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual
Earnings on Pension Plan Investments 73,439
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between
District Contributions and Proportionate Share
of Contributions 522,826 84,306
Total $ 3,023,028 $ 2,249,147
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pengion Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

At June 30, 2018, the amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS
pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year

Ending

June 30 Total
2019 $ 409,528
2020 529,690
2021 350,793
2022 (279,148)
2023 {236,982)

Thereafter -

$ 773,881
Actuarial Assumptions
The District’s total pension Hability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actyarial valuation as of

July 1, 2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017, This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions,
.applied to all periods in the measorement:

Inflation Rate- 2.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.65-4.15%
Based on Age
Thereafter 2,65-5.15%
Based on Age
Investment Rate of Refurn 7.00%
Mortality Rate Table RP-2000

Assumptions for mortality improvements ate based on Society of Actuaries Scale AA.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for
the period July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2014, :
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Emplovee Retiremeni Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferrved Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions {(Continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rate of return (expected retins, net of pension plans investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class, These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation, Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of retumn for each major asset class included in the pension plans’ target
asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Targef Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Absolute Return/Risk Mitigation 5.00% 5.51%
Cash Equivalents 5.50% L.00%
U.8. Treasuries 3.00% 1.87%
Investment Grade Credit 10.00% 31.78%
US Equities ‘ 30.00% 8.19%
Non-US Developed Markets Equity 11.50% 9.00%
Emerging Market Equities 6.50% 11.64%
Public High Yield 2.50% 6.82%
Global Diversified Credit 5.00% 7.10%
Credit Oriented Hedge Funds 1.00% 6.60%
Debt Related Private Equity 2.00% 10.63%
Debt Related Real Estate 1.00% 6.61%
Private Real Estate 2.50% 11.83%
Equity Related Real Estate 6.25% 9.23%
Buyouts/Venture Capital . 8.25% 13.08%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liabilities of the PERS plan was as follows:

Fisecal
Year MeasurementDate Discount Rate

2018 June 30, 2017 5.00%
2017 June 30, 2016 3.98%
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NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)
Discount Rate (Continued)
The following table represents the crossover period, if applicable, for the PERS defined benefit plan:

Period of Projected Benefit
Payments for which the Following

Rates were Applied:
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return Through June 30, 2040
Municipal Bond Rate * From July 1, 2040

and Thereafter

* The municipal bond return rate used is 3.58% as of the measurement date of June 30, 2017. The source is the Bond Buyer
Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of
AA/Aa or higher.

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the PERS net pension lability calculated using the discount rate
of 5.00%, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the PERS net pension liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (4.00 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.00 percent) than the
current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(4.00%) {5.60%) (6.00%)
District's Proportionate Share of
the PERS Net Pension Liability $ 13,379,568 $ 10,785,035 $ 8,623,468

The sensitivity analysis was based on the proportionate share of the District’s net pension liability at June 30, 2017. A
sensitivity analysis specific to the District’s net pension Hability was not provided by the pension system.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the PERS pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued financial

report from the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pension and Benefits, The financial report
may be accessed via the New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Confinued)

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

GASB No. 68, requires participating employers in TPAF to recognize their proportionate share of the collective net pension
liability, collective deferred outflows of resources, collective deferred inflows of resources and collective pension expense
excluding that attributable to employer-paid member contributions. The non-employer allocation percentages presented are
based on the ratio of the State’s contributions made as a non-employer toward the actuarially determined contribution
amount adjusted by locations who participated in the State early retirement incentives to total contributions to TPAF during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. Non-emplover allocation percentages have been rounded for presentation purposes.

The contribution policy for TPAF is set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66 and requires contributions by active members and non-employer
coniributions by the State, State legislation has modified the amount that is contributed by the State. The State’s pension
confribution is based on an actuarially determined amount which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and an
amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the State’s pension contribution was
less than the actuarial determined amount.

In accordance with GASB No. 68, the District is not required to recognize a net pension liability for TPAF. The State of
New Jersey, as a nonemployer contributing entity is the only entity that has a legal obligation to make employer
contributions to TPAF on behalf of the District. Accordingly, the District’s proportionate share percentage determined under
Statement No. 68 is zero percent and the State’s proportionate share is 100% of the net pension liability attributable to the
District for TPAF, Therefore, in addition, the Disfrict does not recognize any portion of the TPAF collective deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized in the district-wide statement of activities (accrual basis)
pension expense of $7,421,425 for TPAF. This amount has been included in the district-wide statement of activities (zcerual
basis) as a revenue and expense in accordance with GASB No. 85.

At June 30, 2018 the State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability attributable to the District is'$107,130,017. The
nonemployer allocation percentages are based on the ratio of the State’s contributions made as an employer and
nonemployer towards the actuarially determined contribution amount adjusted by locations who participated in the State
early retirement incentives to fotal contributions to TPAF during the year ended June 30, 2017. At June 30, 2017, the state’s
share of the net pension lability atiributable to the District was .15889 percent, which was a decrease of .00365 percent from
its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2016 of .16254 percent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continned)

D. FEmployee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred OQutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Continued)

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)
Actaarial Assumptions'
The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,

2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied
to all periods in the measurement.

Inflation Rate 2.25%
Salary Increases:
2012-2021 Varies based

on experience

Thereafter Varies based
on experience

Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Assumptions for mortality rates were based on the experience of TPAF members reflecting mortality improvement on a
generational bases based on a 60-year average of Social Security data from 1953 to 2013.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for
the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013.
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Emplovee Retivement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Ouiflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Continued)

H

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAY) (Continued)
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investipents was determined using a building-block method in which
best-estimate ranges of expected fture real rate of return (expected returns, net of pension plans investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the lonigerin expected rate of
retinn by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation, Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plans® target
asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real
Asset Clags Allgeation Rate of Return
Absolute Return/Risk Mitigation 5.00% 5.51%
Cash Equivalents 5.50% 1.00%
U.S. Treasuries . 3.00% 1.87%
Investment Grade Credit - 10.00% 3.78%
Public High Yield _ 2.50% 6.82%
Global Diversified Credit 5.00% 7.10% ‘
Credit Oriented Hedge Funds 1.00% 6.60%
Debt Related Private Equity 2.00% 10.63%
Debt Related Real Estate 1.00% 6.61%
Private Real Estate 2.50% 11.83%
Equity Related Real Estate 6.25% 9.23%
U.S.Equity 30.00% 8.19%
Non-U.S, Developed Markets Equity 11.50% %.00%
Emerging Markets Equity 6.50% 11.64%
Buyouts/Venture Capital 8.25% 13.08%
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NOTE 5§ OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Continued)

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liabilities of the TPAF plan was as follows:

Fiscal
Year Measurement Date  Discount Rate
2018 June 30, 2017 4.25%

2017 June 30, 2016 3.22%
The following table represents the crossover period, if applicable, for the TPAF defined benefit plan:

Period of Projected Benefit
Payments for which the Following

Rates were Applied: ,
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return Through June 30, 2036
Municipal Bond Rate * From July 1, 2036

and Thereafter

* The municipal bond retum rate used is 3.58% as of the measurement date of June 30, 2017. The source is the Bond Buyer
Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Tadex, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of
AA/Aa or higher. ‘

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability

The following presents the State’s proportionate share of the TPAF net pension lability attributable to the District caloulated
using the discount rate of 4.25%, as well as what the State’s proportionate share of the TPAF net pension hability
attributable to the District that would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (3.25
percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (5.25 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
{3.25%) (4.25%) {5.25%)
State's Proportionate Share of
the TPAF Net Pension Liability :
Attributable to the District $ 127,273,821 $ 107,130,017 $ 90,535,464

The sensitivity analysis was based on the State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability attributable to the District at
June 30, 2017. A sensitivity analysis specific to the State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability attributable fo the
District at June 30, 2017 was not provided by the pension system.
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Emplovee Retirement Systems and Pension Plang (Continued)

Pension Lizbilities, Pension Expeunse, and Deferred Outfiows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions {Continued)

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAE) (Continned)

Pension Plan Fiduclary Net Position

Detailed information about the TPAF pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued financial
report from the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pension and Benefits. The financial report
may be accessed via the New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website at www.state ni.us/treasury/pensions.

E. Post-Retivement Medical Benefits

The Stats of New Jersey sponsors and administers the post-retirement health benefit program plan for school districts.

As a result of implementing GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than
Pension Plans, the post-retirement health benefit program plan is reported in an Agency Fund in the New Jersey
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. Therefore, the plan has no assets
accumulated in a trust. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Oher than Pension (GASB No. 75), the plan is classified as a single employer defined benefit
OPEB plan with a special funding situation that is not administered through a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of
GASB No. 75.

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The State of New Jersey spousors and administers the following post-retirement health benefit program plan covering certain
- local school district employees, including those Boatd employees and retirees eligible for coverage.

State Health Benefit Program Fund — Local Education Retired (including Prescription Drug Program Fund) — N.J.S.A.
52:14-17.32f provides medical coverage and prescription drug benefits to qualified retired education participants. The State
of New Jersey provides employer-paid coverage to members of the TPAF who retire from a board of education or county
college with 25 years of service or on a disability retirement. Under the provisions of Chapter 126, P.L. 1992, the State also
provides employer-paid coverage to members of the PERS and Alternate Benefits Program (ABP) who retire from a board of
education or county college with 25 years of service or on a disability retirement if the member’s employer does not provide
this coverage. Certain local participating employers also provide post-retirement medical coverage to their employees.
Retirees who are not eligible for employer paid health coverage at retirement can continue in the program if their employer
participates in this program or if they are participating in the health benefits plan of their former employer and are enrolled in
Medicare Parts A and B by paying the cost of the insurance for themselves and their covered dependents,

Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, futare retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have less than 20 years of
creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a percentage of the cost of their health care coverage in retirement
provided they retire with 25 or more years of pension service credit. The percentage of the premium for which the retiree
will be responsible will be determined based on the retiree’s annual refirement benefit and level of coverage.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available financial
reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of the above Fund, The financial
reports may be accessed via the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website
at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.
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NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)
Plan Membership
Membership of the defined benefit OPEB plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2016:
Active Plan Members $223,747

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 142,331
Inactive Plan Members Entitled to but not yet Receiving Benefits -

Total $366,078

Measarement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the post-employment health benefit plans are prepared in accordance with U.S, generally
accepted accounting principles as applicable to governmental organizations. In doing so, the Division adheres fo reporting
requirernents established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and changes in net position of the post-employment
health benefit plans. Under this method, contributions are recorded in the accounting period in which they are legally due
from the employer or plan member, and deductions are recorded at the time the liabilities are due and payable in accordance
with the terms of each plan. The accounts of the Division are organized and operated on the basis of funds, Al funds are
accounted for using an economic resources measurement focus.

Investment Valuation

Investments are reported at fair value. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair
value, Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale,

Funded Statas and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2016, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the State had a $69.3 billion unfunded actuarial accrued liability
for other post-employment benefits (OPEB) which is made up to $25.5 billion for state active and retired members and $43.8
billion for education employees and retirees that become the obligation of the State of New Jersey upon retirement.

The funded status and funding progress of the OPEB includes actuarial valuations which involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. These amounts are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the probability of future
events,
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NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)
Funded Status and Funding Progress (Continued)

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the OPEB in
effect at the time of each valuation and also consider the pattern of the sharing of costs between the employer and members
at the point in time, The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential
effects of Jegal or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and members i the
future,

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

In the July 1, 2016, OPEB actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit was used as the actuarial cost method, and the market
value was used as asset valnation method for the OPEB. The actuarial assumptions included an assumed investment rate of
return of 4,50 percent,

Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Confributions

P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required the Teachers’ Pension and Annuify Fund (TPAF) and Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS), respectively to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees and education
employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credifed service or on a disability retirement. As of June 30, 2017,
there were 112,966 , retirees receiving post-retirement medical benefits and the State contributed $1.39 billion on their
behalf, The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State and in accordance with P.L. 1994, ¢.62,
Funding of post-retirement medijcal benefits changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal
Year 1994, ‘

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992, ¢,126, which provides employer paid health benefits to
members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP) who retired from a board of education or county college with
25 years of service, The State paid $238.9 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 20,913 eligible retired members in Fiscal
Year 2017. '

The State sets the contribution rate based on a pay as you go basis and not on the annual required contribution of the
employers (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45, The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actnarial Habilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. The State’s
contributions, as a nonemployer contributing entity, to the State Health Benefits Program Fund — Local Education Retired
for retirees’ post-retirement benefits on behalf of the School District for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016
were $1,585,156, 51,489,154 and $1,549,556, respectively, which equaled the required contributions for each year, The
State’s contributions fo the State Health Benefits Program Fund — Local Education Retired for PERS refirees’ post-
retirement benefits on behalf of the School District was not determined or made available by the State of New Jersey. The
on-behalf OPEB contributions are recognized in the governmental fund financial statements (modified accrual basis) as both
a revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASB No. 85,
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continned)

E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferved Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to OPEB

GASB Statement No, 75 requires participating employers in the State Health Benefit Program Fond — Local Education
Retired to recognize their proportionate share of the collective OPEB liability, collective deferred outflows of resources,
collective deferred inflows of resources and collective OPEB expense excluding that attributable to retirge-paid member
contributions. The nonemployer allocation percentages presented are based on the ratio of the State’s coniributions made as
a nonemployer toward the actuarially determined contribution amount to total contributions to the plan during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2017, Nonemployer allocation percentages have been rounded for presentation purposes.

Tn accordance with GASB No. 75, the District is not required to recognize an OPEB liability for the post-employment health
benefit plan. The State of New Jersey, as a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to
make employer contributions to the plan on behalf of the District. Accordingly, the District’s proportionate share percentage
determined under Statement No. 75 is zero percent and the State’s proportionate share is 100% of the OPEB liability
attributable to the District, Therefore, in addition, the District does not recognize any portion of the collective deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the plan.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized in the district-wide statement of activities (acerual basis)
OPEB expense of $4,183,587. This amount has been included in the district-wide statement of activities (accrual basis) as a
revenue and expense in accordance with GASB No. 85.

At June 30, 2018 the State’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the District is $64,786,814. The
nonemployer allocation percentages are based on the ratio of the State’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability
attributable to the District at une 30, 2017 to the fotal OPEB liability of the State Health Benefit Program Fund — Local
Education Retired Employees Plan at June 30, 2017. At June 30, 2017, the state’s share of the OPEB liability attributable to
the District was .12078 percent, which was a decrease of .00001 percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30,
2016 of .12079 percent.

Actuarial Assumptions

The OPEB liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016,
which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all
periods in the measurement.

Inflation Rate 2.50%
Salary Increases *
Tnitial Fiscal Year Applied Through 2026
Rate 1.55% t0 4.55%
Rate Thereafter 2.00% to 5.45%
Mortality RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Employee, Healthy Annuitant

and Disabled Male/Female Mortality Table
with Fully Generational Mortality Improvement Projections from the Central Year
Using Scale MP-2017
Long-Term Rate of Return 1.00%

*Salary increases are based on the defined bencfit plan that the individual is enrolled in and his or her year of service for
TPAY or his or her age for PERS.
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

E. Post-Retitement Medical Benefits (Continued)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resoarces Related
to OPEB (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Healthcare cost trend rates for pre-Medicare Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) medical benefits, this amount initially is
5.9 percent and decreases fo a 5.0 percent long-term trend rate after nine years. For self-insured post-65 PPO medical
benefits, the trend rate is 4.5 percent. For health maintenance organization (HMO)medical benefits, the trend rate is initially
5.9 percent and decreases to a 5.0 percent long-term trend rate after nine years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial
trend rate is 10.5 percent and decreases to a 5.0 percent long-term trend rate afler eight years. For the Medicare Part B
reimbursement, the frend rate is 5.0 percent, This reflects the known underlying cost of the Part B premium, The Medicare
Advantage trend rafe is 4.5 percent and will continue in all fufure years.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of the TPAF and PERS actuarial
experience studies for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2015 and July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2014, respectively.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

As the OPEB plan only invests in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund, the long-term expected rate of return on
OPERB investments was based off the best-estimate ranges of future real rates of return (expected retums, net of OPEB plan
investment expense and inflation) for cash equivalents, which is 1.00% as of June 30, 2017,

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPERB liabilities of the plan was as follows:

Fiscal

Year Measurement Date Discount Rate
2018 " Tune 30,2017 3.58%
2017 June 30, 2016 2.85%

The discount rate represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-
Bond Municipal Bond Index, which inclades tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of
AAJAa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond rate, it is not considered in the calculation
of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at the municipal bond rate,
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2018

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

¥. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resonrces Related
to OPEB (Continued)

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

The change in the State’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the District for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2018 (measurement date June 30, 2017) is as follows:

Total OPEB .
Liability ;
{State Share 100%)
Balance, June 30, 2016 Mcasurement Date $ 69,856,981
Changes Recognized for the Fiscal Year:
Service Cost $ 3,027,972
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 2,052,814
Changes of Assumptions {(8,559,275)
Gross Benefit Payments {1,652,528)
Contributions from the Member 60,850
Net Changes $ 5,070,167y
Balance, Tune 30, 2017 Measurement Date $ 64,786,814

%hla’;lges of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 2.85 percent in 2016 to 3.58 percent in
2017.

The change in the total OPEB liability was based on the State’s proportionate shave of the OPER liability attributable to the
District af June 30, 2017. A change in the total OPEB liability specific to the State’s proportionate share of the OPEB
liability attributable to the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 was not provided by the pension system.

Sensitivity of OPEB Liability

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the State’s proportionate share
of the OPEB liability attributable to the District calculated using the discount rate of 3.58%, as well as what the State’s
proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the District that would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.58 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.58 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Disconnt Rate Increase
(2.58%) (3.58%) {4.58%0) ;
State's Proportionate Share of
. the OPEB Liability
Attributable to the District 3 76,906,622 $ 64,786,814 $ 55,173,267
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

OPIB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to OPEB (Continued)

Sensitivity of OPER Liability (Continned)

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents the State’s
proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the District calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-
percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healtheare cost trend rates:

Healthcare
1% Cost Trend 1%
Decrease Rates Increase
Total OPEB Liability (School Retirees) $ 53,280,892 $ 64,786,814 8 80,066,544

The sensitivity analyses were based on the State’s proportionate share of the OPEB lability attributable to-the District at
June 30, 2017, Sensitivity analyses specific fo the State’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the
District at June 30, 2017 were not provided by the pension system.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES




REVENUES
Locat Sonrces

Local Tax Levy

Tuktion

Interest

Interest on Capitad Reserve

Rents and Royalties

Miscellancous

State Sources

Special Education Aid

Security Aid

‘Transportation Aid

PARCC Readiness

Per Pupil Growth Aid

Professional Leaming Community Aid

Non-Public Transporiation

Extraordinary Aid

Lead Testing for Schools Aid

On-Behalf TPAF {Non-Budpet)
Pension Contribution
NCGI Premium
Long Term Disability Insurance
Post Retirement - Medical
Social Secuity

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT
Instrustion - Regular Programs
Salacies of Teachers
Grades 9-12
Home Instruction
Salaries of Tenchers
Purchased Prof-Ed, Services

Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction

Purchased Prof-Bd. Scrvices
Other Purchased Services
General Supplics

Textbaoks

Other Objects

Total Regutar Programs

Leaming andéor Language Disabilities
Salanes of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
Purchased Prof-Ed, Services
Other Purchased Services
General Supplies

Texfbooks
Other Objects

Total Learning and/or Language Disabilities

EXHIBIT C-1

WATCHUNG RELLS REGIONAL FIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERALFUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Variance
Original Modified Final Budget to
Buipet Adjustmentz Budget Actus] Actunl

b3 30,506,702 £ 30,506,702 § 30,506,702

7,171,854 771,854 7,236,479 64,625

5,000 5,500 59,064 54,064

100 100 890 790

125,600 120,000 137,423 17,423

50,000 50,000 121,863 77,563

637,517 637,517 750,169 112,652
83,096 23,096 §3,006
218,205 218,205 218,205
18,030 4,030 18,130
18,030 18,030 18,030
17,520 17,520 17,530

80,130 80,130

200,000 200,000 448,518 248,518

3,332 33312

2,396,115 2,396,115

58,148 58,148

3047 3,047

1,585,156 1,585,156

- - - 1,180,322 L180322

359,046,054 - 39,046,054 44,928.239 5882 185

11,450,557 {307,300) 11,143,257 10,862,118 281,139

35,550 . 35,550 1,480 33,070

22,000 - 22,000 18,850 3,150

12,500 5550 18,050 12,927 5123

696,206 13,899 710,105 670,889 39,216

409,300 6,189 415,489 331,393 83,556

11710 (16,051) 111,719 57,823 53,806

9,008 - 9,000 35618 5,381

12,762,883 (290,713 12,465,170 11,960,509 504,571

343,040 3,700 346,749 346,727 2

354,260 16,800 371,850 366,306 4,754

14,500 - 14,500 14,500

2,500 450) 2,050 2,050

10,250 (1,400} 8,850 8328 i)

00 - Fi] 700

1,000 {300) 500 - 500

736,258 18,150 744,409 721,161 23,248

Continued




EXHIBIT C-1

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Variance
Originat Modified Final Bodgef to
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Actua] i
EXTENDITURES i
CURRENT (Continued)
Resourcs Room :
Salaries of Teachers $ [,566,328 1,566,328 % 1,542,008 $ 24,320
Other Salaries for Insiruction 378,745 § {20,000} 358,745 314,861 43,384
Other Purchased Services 508 - 500 500
General Supplics 33,925 (3,600} 30,325 24,109 6,146
Textbooks 2000 {1,000} 1,000 47 953 H
‘Total Resource Room 1,981,408 {24,600 1,956,898 1,881,065 75,803 ‘
Totsl Special Education 2,707,757 (6,450} 2,701,307 2,602,256 99 051
Bilingual Bducation
Salariss of Teachers 19,322 - 19,322 15,982 3,560
Other Purchased Services 500 - 500 500
Other Objects £00 - 600 - 600
‘Total Bilingual Education 20422 - 20422 15,562 4,460
Schonl Sponsored Co-Currioular Activities
Salaries 242,330 - 242,330 228,231 14,109
Purchased Services 1,200 240 1440 234 1,296
Suppiies and Maserials 35,950 (6,435) 33,513 25,212 £,303
Other Objects 350 350 350 -
Transfers to Cover Deficit 15,200 (350) 18,850 9,250 5,600
Total School Sponsored Co-Curricular Activities 301,680 {5,195) 296,485 263,267 33218
Scheol Sponsored Athlufics - Instruction
Salarics 156,837 7,300 764,137 736,349 27,788
Purchased Services H9.488 - B,240 218,688 195,847 22,841
Supplics and Materinls 208,900 {1,738} 201,155 136,645 64,520
Other Objects 2,000 7,700 16,700 1,089 9,611
Total School Sponsored Athletics-Instruction -1,184.225 16465 1,200,690 1,675,930 124,766 §
Tota! - Instruction 16977667 {253,893) 16,684,074 15518,014 766,060
Undistributed Bxpenditures :
Tostruction
Tuition fo Other LEAs Within Stata - Repular 29,900 {19,390) 10,010 5,932 T8 i
Tuition o Cther LEAs Within State - Spee. 292348 {26,510) 265,838 230,51 35,267 i
Tudtian fo Co. Voo, School Dist, - Reg, 28,250 (750} 27,500 23,855 3,605
Tuition to Co. Vo, School Dist, - Speciat 10,200 {2,100} 3,100 5,038 3,064
Tuition te Priv Sch. For Disabled win State 1,852,162 41,310 1,893,472 1,837,084 56,388
Tuition to Priv Sch, For Disobled Out of State - 80,000 20,000 80,000 -
Tuition - Other 25,008 {10,150} 14,850 10,311 4,535
Total Undistributed Expenditarcs - Instraction 2237.860 61,910 2299770 2196 829 102,941
{
H
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EXHBIT C-2

WATCHUNG RILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL IISTRICT
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Variance
Original Muodified Final Budget to
Budget A on Budget Actus! Actual

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT {Continned)

Attendance and Social Work Services
Salaries $ 65,276 - 8 65276 % 64436 3 B4 ;
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 11,000 % {1,000 10,000 450 9,550 i

Total Attendance and Sacial Work Sves, 76,276 {1,000} 75,276 4,886 10,395

Heaith Services
Solasies of Teachers 244,770 1,200 245 970 245,559 11
Purchnsed Professional and Technical Services 32,400 107,600 139,400 130,493 3,907
Other Parchased Services 1,000 {200} 800 9 781
Supplics and Materials 10,760 - 10,700 4,624 6,076

H
Total Health Services 288 870 103,000 394,870 381,085 15,785
Other Suppors Services - Speech, OT, PT
and Related Services
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 180,000 36,100 216,100 176,589 39,501
Total Other Support Seevices-Speech, OT, PT .
and Related Services 180,000 36,100 216,100 176,599 39,501 3

Other Support Services - Extra. Servioes
Salaries 92,462 {500} 1,962 80,691 11,271
Purchased Professional - Bducational Services 447,856 48400 496,206 474,138 22,158

Total Other Bupport Services - Extra. Services 540,358 47,900 588,258 554829 33.42%

Other Support Services - Guidance ,
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 430,356 (9,600% 920,796 891,796 25,0600 :
Salaries of Secretarial and Clericat Assistants 115,795 T05 115,493 116,447 48 3
Other Salaries £59,390 - 159,390 159,390 - :
Other Purchased Servives 1,500 {1,000) 500 500
Supplies and Materials 30,106 (3,565) 26,535 13,668 12,867
Other Chijects 8,500 1,000 9,506 9,230 270

Totat Other Sopport Services - Guidance 1245651 {12 485) I.233,ﬁ‘[6 1,190,531 42 683

(Other Support Services - Child Study Team
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 742,513 - 742,513 738,627 3,886
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 112,930 1,600 114,530 114,526 10
Purchased Professional « Bducational Services 3,000 4,600 7,600 4,906 2,100
Other Purchased Services 25723 {1,000} 24713 17,17 7,006
Supplies gnd Materials 4,750 - 4,750 4,197 553
Other Objects 2,000 (500) 1,500 395 1,105

Totat Other Support Services - Child Study Team 500,916 4,700 895,616 880,356 15,260

Improvement of Instruction Services/

Other Support Services-Tustroctions! Steff
Salaries of Supwrvisors of Instruction 570674 - 570,674 570,674 -

Safaries of Other Professional Staff 13,500 - 13,500 9,800 3,760
Salavies of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 45,624 B 46,624 45,624 -
Supplies and Materials 1,500 - 1,500 . 1,500
‘Totnd Improvernent of Instruction Sexvices/ )
Gther Support Services-Instructional Staffl 632,298 - 632,298 627.098 5,260

81 Continued
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EXHIBIT C1

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAIL HEGH SCHOOL DISTRICT H
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEGULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Vartance i

Original Modified Final Budgat to i
Budpet Adjustments Budget Actual Actnal i
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT (Continued) i
Educationat Modia Services/School Lilrary {
Salaries $ 269,555 § 269,553 26641t 3 3,142 §
Other Porchased Services 57343 57,343 53,587 3,756 :
Supplics and Materials 24950 - 24,750 15,187 9,363 H
H
Total Bducational Media Services/Schoo Library 351,646 - 351,646 335 185 16,461 {
Instructional Staff Training Services :
Salaries of Other Professions! Staff 52475 5 52,480 52476 [ i
Salaries of Seorctarial and Clerical Assist, 25,046 - 25,046 25,045 1 H
Orther Selaries 10,000 ) 9,695 1,155 8,340 :
Purchased Professional/Educational Svos. 35,000 - 35,600 32380 2,620 {
Other Purchased Servioes 22,000 (370} 21,630 20,578 1,052
Supplies end Matcrials 15,000 - 15,000 7212 7,768 !
Oiher Chjects 5,000 - 3,008 1,083 3915 ‘z
i
Toinl Instructional Steff Training Sves, 164,521 {370y 164,151 139951 24,208 :
E
Support Services General Administration i
Salaries 298,586 - 298,586 205,731 2,85% H
Lepal Servioes 85,000 - 85,000 0,363 4.635 E
Anudit Fees 31,560 28,500 60,000 28,638 31,3452 ]
Other Purchased Professionsl Services 20,197 9,500 29,697 14,134 15,563 i
Puschased Techaical Services 26,500 46,500 73,000 67,616 5,324 %
Miscallaneous Purchased Services 216,733 2,677 215410 218541 589 f
Commimications/Telephone 50,263 - 50,363 15,305 3,738 !
BOE Gther Purchased Services 2,000 560 2,900 2,892 8 5
General Supplies 4,600 600 5,200 5,161 39
BOE In House Training/Mesting Suppliss 5,280 - 5,180 234 5,046 :
Judgements Against the School District . -
Miscellaneons Expenditures 12,100 (600 12,099 6,308 5,208
BOE Membership Dues and Fees 35430 - 31,420 15,508 15,812
Total Support Services General Administration 784,979 88,076 872,855 754,383 118472
Support Services Schoot Administration
Salaries of PrincipaisfAsst. Principals®Program Direciors 586,789 “ 586,789 586,748 1
Sataries of Othor Professionel Staff 736,385 10,900 47,285 47,258 27
Sataries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 183,270 {2,008} 181,270 180,066 1,204
Other Purchased Services L5975 465 2,440 2376 64
Supplies and Materials 29 350 {1,900) 27,350 23271 4,079
Other Ohjecis 29,000 - 29,000 21,716 1284
Total Suppert Servises School Administration 1,566 669 7465 1,574,134 1,561,475 12,659
Central Services
Salaries 604,910 . 604,910 604,860 50
Purchased Technical Services 1,100 3,500 4,200 2,732 2,468
Misc. Furchased Services 16,500 {1,450) 15,150 8,520 6,230
Supplies and Materials 8,400 1,100 9,500 %454 1,046 :
Miseellaneons Bxpenditures 5,800 1,550 7,750 7,633 112 :
Total Central Services 637410 5,100 642,510 632,599 9,911

Confinged
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EXPENDITURES
CURRENT (Continued)
Administration Information Technology
Salarics
Purchased Technical Servicas
Other Parchased Sorvices
Other Objects

Totel Adminfstration Information Technology

Undist, Bxpend, - Required Maint, For School
Facilities
Sataries
Cleaning, Repsir, and Maintenance

General Supplies
Other Objetts

Total Undist. Expend - Required Maint. For
School Fecilities

Undist. Bxpend. - Custodial Services
Purchased Professional-Technical Services
Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Secvices
Other Purchased Property Bervices
Insurance
Miscelinncows Purchazed Services
General Supplies

Erergy(Natural Gas)
Energy(Blectricity)

Total Undist, Expend, - Custodiat Services

Care and Upkeep of Grounds
Salaries
Purchased Prof. and Technical Servives

Cleaning, Repair, and Muintenance Serv,
General Supplics

Total Care and Upkeep

Security
Salaties
Purchased Prof, and Technicat Services
Cleaning, Repalr, and Maintenance Sarv.
General Supplics
Other Objecis

Total Security

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

EXHIBRIT C-1

Variance
Original Madificd Final Budget to
Budget Adiostments Budpet Actual Acteal

H 188418 183418 % 185,720 % 2,698
S1216 § (2,000) 43210 30,504 18,306
54,950 9,500 54,350 62,964 1,586
500 - 500 - 500
295078 7.900 302978 279,588 23,390
904,931 (10,000} 894,931 715,468 175463
476,555 186,835 663,390 526,868 136,522
114,985 19,280 134,185 113,426 26,759
5,400 - 5,400 674 4,726
1,501,871 196,035 {697,506 1,356,436 341439
2,500 2,560 2,458 42
732,608 3,100 735,708 728,079 7,628
92,406 - 92,406 67,148 25,258

6,652 - 6,652 6,652 -
87,584 B 87,584 §3,392 3,692
9,000 {3,100) 5,900 5,080 80
195,260 - 195,260 166,918 28,342
521,500 - 521,500 481,428 40,072
1,645,050 2.500 1.647.510 1,541,655 105855
286,560 {23,000} 263,560 240,047 23,583
20,500 190 20,690 3,335 17,355
102,000 {46,475) 55,525 45,932 9,593
55920 &A66 62,386 55,958 6428
464,980 {62,819 402 161 345272 56889
295,692 3300 298,992 298,982 31
129,500 1,200 130,700 121,266 9,434
5,300 2,100 7400 12 6,628
18,000 {3,179) 14,821 3328 11,493
200 - 200 - 200
448 592 3421 452,113 424 348 27.763

83 Continued
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EXHIBIT C-1

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL EIGH. SCEOOL HISTRICT
GENERAL FUND .
BEUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Variasce 5

Orighual Mudifed Final Budget to

Buodect Adiustments Budeet Actug] Actanl

EXPENDITURES i
CURRENT (Continued)
Stident Transpartation Services
Sal. For Pupil Trans (Bet Home and Sch)}-Reg. $ 61,679 - 8 61,079 61,07 -
Sal. For Pupil Trans (Other Than Bet Home and Sch) 160,604 {5,300% 155,304 1373713 % 17,931 ;
Other Purchased Prof. and Technicat Svee. 6,778 - 6,778 6,710 68
Management Fee - ESC Transportation Program 19,227 15,400 34,627 33,858 769 ;
Cleening, Repair, and Maintenance Services 36,500 - 36,500 36,177 323
Rents] Payments - School Buses 2,015 2,015 2,014 1 H
Contr. Serv. (Bet Home and Sch)-Yendors 803,682 7,551 811,233 746,715 64,518 ;
Canir. Serv. (Other Than Bet Home and Sch)
- Vendors 14,640 6,500 21,240 15,078 6,162 i
Contr. Serv. (Bet Home and Sch)-foint Agreements 73,130 5,400 78,530 77,903 627
Contr. Serv. (Spee. Ed.}-Joinl Agreements 740,434 289,000 1,029,434 1,024,771 4,663
Contr, Serv. - Ald in Lieu Paymenis 227374 30,000 257374 243,667 13,707 :
Miscellaneous Purchased Services - Transportation 33,990 - 33,990 33,990 - !
General Supplies 15,500 - 15,500 3,999 11,301
Other Objects 5,250 {15) 5,235 3,552 1,683
Tatal Student Transportation Services 2,198,188 350,651 2,548,839 2,426,886 121,953 2
Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits i

Social Becarity Contributions 401,145 24,000 425,145 401,896 23,249

Qther Retirement Conteibutions-PERS 411,183 26,215 437,398 437,395 3 ;

Other Reticement Contributions- Regular 1875 9,200 13,075 12,941 134

Uniemplayment Compansation 800 . 80O 659 141 §

Workmen's Compensation 236,268 {6,500 229,768 229,765 3 i

Health Benefits 5456,217 (407,585) 5,048,632 4,856,033 192,599 !

Tuition Refmbursernent ‘134,000 (10,640 123,360 100,867 22,493 i

Other Employes Benofits 8,000 - 3,000 3,203 4,797 H

Untised Sick Payments to Terminated/Retired Staff 57,100 - 37,100 32 864 24,236 i

Totaf Unallocased Benefits - Bmployes Benefits 6,708 588 {365,310) 6,343,278 6,075,623 267,655 fi

On-Behalf - TPAF (Now-Bodget) i

Pension Contribution 2,396,115 (2,396,115}

NCG! Premiun 58,148 (58,148)

Long Term Disabifity nsurance 3,047 (3,047

Post Retirement-Medical 1,585,156 {1,585,156)

Social Security Contributions - = - 1,180,322 (1,180322)

Totsl On-Behalf - - . 5,222 788 (5.222,788)

Total Undistributed Expenditures 22,859,651 471,394 23,337 485 21,168,402 (3,830,911

Total Current Expendifures 319,837,658 183,901 40,021,550 43,085,416 (3.064,857) :
CAPITAL OUTLAY i
Bquipment

Instroction
Grades 9-12 7,508 7,599 1,509 .

Lesming and/or Language Disabltities - -
Schoot Sponsored and Other Instructionaf 34,148 [4,148 8,967 5,181

Vocstional
SchookSponsored and Other Instructional Programs 16,000 16,000 18,000 -

Undistributed
Central Services 19,300 19,300 19280 20
Admnin. Infh, Tech, 20414 20414 13,602 §,812 i
Required Maintenance 30,275 30,273 23975 6300 3
Care and Upkeep of Grounds - 3,200 8,200 8,157 43 i

1

Total Bauipment - 115,936 115,936 97,580 18,156 :
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EXPENDITURES
CAPITAL OUTLAY (Continued)

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Svces.
Architectural 2nd/or Engineering Services
Construction Services
Assessment of Debt Service on SDA Punding

Total Facilifies Acqguisition and Construction Svoes.
Intercst Deposit to Capital Reserve

“Total Capital Optay

Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficicncy) of Revenues
Oves/(Under) Expenditures

Capitaf Reserve
Transfers In
Transfers Qul

Tote? Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenaes and Other
Finapeing Sources Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other financing Uses

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, Fad of Yeay

Reeapitulation:
Restricted Fund Balance:
Capital Reserve

Capital Reserve - Designated for Subsequent Yeur's Budget

Maintenance Reserve
Tuition Reserve

Tuition Reserve - Desigoated for Subsequent Year's Budget

Bxeess Surplus

Excess Surplus » Designated In Subsequent Year's Budget

Commiticd Fund Balance:
Encumbrances
Assigned Fund Balance:

Encumbrasces

Designated for Subsequent Year's Budget
Unzsslgred Fand Balance:

Unreserved

Less: State Aid Payments Not Recognized an GAAP

Fund Balance, GAAP Hasis (Exhibit B-2)

WATCHUNG HILELS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND

BUDBGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

EXHIBIT C-1

Variance
Original Modificd Final Budget to
Budget Adijustments Budget Actual Actual
H 1L100 % 37650 % 48,750 3 43745 § 4
132,900 783,350 932,2%0 920,894 1,396
121,752 « 121,752 121,752 -
271,752 321,040 1,092,792 1.091,392 1,400
108 - 100 - 100
271,832 936,976 1,208,828 1,i8897 19,856
40,109,310 1,120,877 41,230 387 44975388 {3.045.001)
(1,063,456 (1,120,877 {2,184,333) 652851 2,837,184
{1321,271) . (1,321.271) (1,321,271 -
{1,321,271) - (1,321,271) {1,321.271) -
(2384,727) (1,120,877 (3,505,604 (668,420) 2,837,184
6,538,995 - 6,538,995 5,538,995 -
3 4154268 § (1,120,877} § 3‘03_5;22“{ 5 3,870,575 % 2,837,184
$ 2,359,266
604,934
249,738
100,000
100,000
503,518
52198
38,487
44,119
223,834

85

1,123,704

5,870,575

{543,996

$ 5,326,579
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EXHIBIT C-2

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

7 Yariance
Originnl Modified Final Budget
Budget Adjustments Budget Actugl to Acfual
REVENUES
Intergovernmentat ;
Seate § 108,672 § 34,136 3 142,802 % 126,571 % (16,231)
Federal 387,155 106,703 493,858 414,014 (79,844)
Other 20,867 11,283 32,150 19,308 (12,842) ;
Total Revenues 516,604 152,116 668,810 559,893 (108.,217)
EXPENDITURES ~
Instruction
Salarics of Teachers 55,867 (17915 37,956 23,901 14,055
Purchased Professional and Educ Services 25,562 27475 53,037 40,714 12,323
Other Purchased Services 317,122 70,586 387,708 377,046 10,562
General Supplies 9,646 12,349 21,995 18,853 3,142
Textbooks 21,384 (2,814) 18,570 & 17,642 528 :
Other Objects - 2,593 2,593 2,593 -
Total Instruction 420,581 92,278 521 859 480,749 41,110
Support Services :
Salaries 10,769 11,7132 22,441 7,233 15,208 ;
Personal Services - Employee Benefits 6,324 5601 11,925 7,556 4,369 i
Putchased Professional and Edne Services 70,080 42,505 132,583 64,355 48.230 5
Total Support Services 87,113 59,838 146,951 79,144 67,807
Total Expenditures 516,604 152,116 | 668 810 559,893 108,917 T
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures - - - - - {
Fund Balance, Begitming of Year - - - - - 1
Fund Balance, End of Year 3 -8 -8 -8 -8 -
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EXHIBIT C-3

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3¢, 2018

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management contrs] device during the year. For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting end accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of cerfain
state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the treatmont of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described
below, Eneumbrance accounting is also eraployed #s an extension of formal budpetary integration of the governmental fund
types, Unencumbered appropristions lapse at fiscal year end,

The accounting records of the Special Revenue Funds are maintained on the grant accotmting budgetary basis. The graat
accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances es
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental recovds
are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

The following presents 4 reconciliation of the General and Speciaf Revenue Funds from the budgetary basis of accounting
as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund and Special Revenue Fund to the GAAP basis of
accounting as presented in the Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds.

Special
General Revenue
Fuad Fund

Saurces/Inflows of Resources
Actual Revennes (budgetary basis) (Exhibits C-1 and C-2) § 44928239 § 559,893

Difference - Budget to GAAP
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recoghized as expenditures, and the
related revenue is recognized,
Prior Year Encumbrances
Current Year Encumbrances
State Aid payment recognized for budgetacy purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements - Current Year- {543,99¢6)
State Aid payments recogaized for GAAP statements,

not recognized for budgetary basis - Prior Year 434,164 -

Total revenues as teported ofi the Staternent of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-2) § 443818407 § 559,893

Uses/Outflows of Resourees
Actuai Expenditures {budgetary basis) (Exhibit C-1 and C-2) $ 44275388 ¢ 559,893

Differenices - Budget fo GAAP
Eacumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not
received are reported in the year the order is placed for
tadgetary purposes but in the year the supplies are recefved
for financial reporting purposes
Prior Year Encumbrances
Current Year Encumbrances - -

Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - :
Governmental Funds {Exhibit B-2) $ 44275388 § 559,893
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART III

PENSION AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS INFORMATION




EXHIBIT1-1

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPFLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Last Five Fiscal Years *

2018 2017 016 2013 014
District's Proportion of the Net Position
Liability (Asset) 0.04633% 0.04680% 0.04456% 0.04308% 0.04168%
District's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) $ 10,785,035 § 13,861,901 § 10,002,788 $  B8,065407 % 7,965,083
Districet's Covered-Employee Payroll b3 3324992 § 3,083,173 § 3,104,751 § 2974617 § 2977975
District's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentags
of its Covered-Employee Payrofl 324.36% 454.02% 322.18% 271.14% 26747%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 48.10% T 40.14% 47.93% 52.08% 43.72%

* The emounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the previous fiscal year end.
This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years in accordance

with GASB Statement No. 68, However, until a full 1¢-year trend is compiled, the District will onty
present information for those years for which information is available.
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EXHIBIT 1-2

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS

FUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Last Five Fiseal Years
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Contractually Required Confribution $ 429204 § 415,197 % 383,095 § 355,130 § 314,019
Coniributions in Relation to the
{ontractually Required Contributions 429,204 415,797 383,095 353,136 314,019
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - § - 3 -~ $ - 8 -

District's Covered- Employee Payroll $ 3,324,992 §

Contributions a5 a Percentage of
Covered-Employee Payroll 12.91%

3,053,173 § 3,104,751 § 2974617 § 2977975

13.62% 12.34% 11.94% 10.54%

This scheduls is presenied to filustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years in sccordance
with GASH Statement No, 68, However, until a full 10-year teend is compiled, the District will only

present information for those years for which information is available,
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EXHIBIT 1-3

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOQL DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S FROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

TEACHERS' PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND
Last Five Fiscal Years *

2018 2017 2016 015 2014
District's Proportion of the Net Position
Liability (Assct) % % 0% 0% 0%
District's Proportionate Share of the Net )
Pension Liability (Asset) 50 $0 $0 %0 $0

Statc's Proportionate Share of Net Pension
Liabifity (Asset} Associated with the District  § 107,130,017 § 127,864,123 § 102351486 % 83009491 § 80,663,187

Total $ 107,130,017 § 127,864,123 § 102,351,486 § 83009491 § 80,663,187

2 _iteloind
District's Covered-Employee Payroll $ 16,808,037 § 16344743 § 16417962 § 16,160,027 § 15820277

District's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage
of its Covered-Employee Payroll 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 25.41% 32.33% 18.71% 31.64% 33.76%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were dstermined as of the previous fiscal year end,
This schedule is presented to iHlustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years in accordance

with GASB Staterent No. 68, However, uatil a foll 1{-year trend is compiled, the District will only
present information for those years for which information is available,
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EXHIBIT 1-4

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY
AND SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Change of Benefit Terms: None.

Change of Assumptions: Assumptions used in calculating the net pension lability and statutorily
required employer contribution are presented in Note 5.
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EXHIBIT L-5

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT'S FROPORTIONATE SHARE OF
TOTAL OPEB LIABIEITY

Postemployment Health Benefit Plan

Last One Fiscal Year®
2018
Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost $ 3,027,972
Interest on Total OPEB Lishility 2,052,814
Changes of Benefit Terms -
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience -
Changes of Assumptions (8,559,275)
Gross Benefit Payments {1,652,528)
Contribution: from the Member ) 60,850
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (5.070,167)
Tatal OPER Liability - Beginning 69,856,981
Total OPEB Liability - Ending § 64,786,814
District’s Proportionate Share of OPEB Liability 5 -
State's Proportionate Share of OPEB Liability - 64,786,814
Total OPEB Liability - Ending § 64786814
District's Covered-Employec Payrof] $  20,133.009
Distvict's Proportionate Share of the
Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of its
Covered-Employee Payroll 0%

MNote: No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB 75.

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the previous fiscal year end.

This schedule is presented to fiustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 75. However, until a firfl 10-year trend is eompiled, the District will only present information for those
years for which information is available.
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EXHIBIT 1L-6

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE OPEB LIABILITY
AND SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE OPEB LIABILITY
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Changes in Beneﬁt Terms: None,
Changes of Assumptions Assumptions used in calculating the OPEB liability
are presented in Note 5,
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
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REVENUES
IntergovimmmerRal
Sate
Federal
Locel

Total Revenues

EXTENAITURES

instruction
Srularics of Teachsrs
Puschused Professional pnd Hdu: Bervices
Other Parchased Servives
Grenerst SuppHes
“Textbaoks
Othes Objects
Teta Instenerion

Suppost Services
Salaries
Personel Services - Emplayse Benafity
Purchased Professions] and Eduo Services
Tuinl Sugpors Sarvices

Total Expenditures

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REYENUES, EXFENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

LIDEA,

WATCHUNG BILLS REGTONAL HMGH SCEOOL DISTRICT

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUBGETARY BASIS

FORTHE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JONE 56,2018

EXAITE-1

Non-PubRe
Tatle i Part B Examand  Supplesenia) Home Grand
PartA Basic Tile] Texibonis Magzing Clasy Techoolvgy Becority Iostroction Eoeal Totgh
5 ITes S 322§ 39A9 $ 476 % 12540 8 23417 § 3%9 5 Az
s 27 8 376824 € 29457 414,014
- N - - - - - - - - 19,308 19,308
s i ER] ATEEM X 9457 5 17642 § 32258 § 39D S 46 8 12540 § 73417 5 85 19308 5 359863
s 22,401 1560 8 2501
s 1BEF s 476 s £ 49,714
5 368,144 8501 377,046
H 12,540 5313 18,853
$  17ea2 17,642
R - B - . . - . N . 2593 2,593
. 368,144 22,401 12,882 - 39,430 476 12,540 - 399 15,308 40,74
$ 1233 1233
500 7058 7,556
- LX) - - B ase - - - 23417 - - 64355
1733 5650 1038 - 32,258 - - . 23,417 . - 19,144
3 151§ 376,824 % 29457 §. 17642 5 32258 § 3981 § 415 3 12550 5 23417 § 399 32308 5 559893




CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND




g6

Project Title/Deseription

Referendum Projest - Infrastructore Repairs
and Renovation of the High School

Tuef Field
Techaology, Vehicles end Security Upgrades

Acguisition of Equipment

* Increased for interest earned on Lease Purchase Account

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PROJECT EXPENDITURES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Expenditures {o Date

EXHIBIT F-}

Supplements] Balance
Appropristions Adjustments Authorization Prior Years Current Year June 30, 2058
5 12,353,000 3 700,000 § 12208751 § 832,358 § 21180
541,000 895,112 45,888
645,000 528 * 618,837 26,591 -
590,000 - - 568,181 21,819
3 14,729,000 § 528 $ 700,000 £ 13,722,700 3 1,4271230 $ 275,598
Project Balanees % 279,598
Add: Interest on Escrow 916
Fund Balange - GAAP Basis b 280,514
Recagitulation of Fand Balance
Restricted for Capital Projects
Encumbrances § 21,819
Aveilable for Capital Projects 258,695
Total Fund Balznce - Restricted for
Capital Projects s 280,514
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PROJECT EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Leasge Purchase Proceeds
Transfer from General Fund - Capital Reserve
Interest on Deposits
Interest on Escrow

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Construction Services

Acquisition of Capital Equipment

Acquisition of Non-Capital Equipment
Transfer fo Debt Service Fund

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1, 2017

Fund Balance, June 30, 2018

98

EXHIBIT F-2

$ 590,000
700,000

4,438

916

1,295,354

13,650
549,708
458,246
405,626

4,438
1431668

(136,314)

416,828

3 280514




EXHIBIT F-2a

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
: CAFITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS
NORTH KITCHEN - INTERIOR ALTERATIONS
FROM INCEFTION THROUGH THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2018

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Cuttent Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Bond Proceeds $ 764,027 8 - % 764,027 § 764,027
Total Revenues 764,027 - ' 764,027 764,027
Expenditures snd Other Firancing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 79,309 79,309 79,309
Construction Services 484,718 484,718 484,718
Equipment 200,000 - 200,000 200,000
Total Expenditizes - 764,027 - 764,027 764,027

Excess of Revenes Over Expenditures ¥ - ¥ - % - 3 -

Additional Project Information:

Project Number 5550-050-13-4000
Grant Date July 19,2013
Bond Authorization Date December 4, 2013
Bonds Authorized $ 12,553,000
Bonds Issued $ 12,553,000
Original Authorized Cost 5 606,575
Incresse {Decrease) in Authorized Cost $ 157,452
Revised Authorized Cost $ 764,027
Percentage Increase Over Original

Authorized Cost 25.96%
Percentage Completion 100%
Original Target Completion Date August 31, 2016
Revised Target Completion Date N/A
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EXHIBIT F-2b

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

SOUTH KITCHEN - INTERIOR ALTERATIONS

FROM INCEPTION THROUGH TEE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3¢, 2018

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Bond Proceeds _ 3 550,606 $ 550,606 % 550,606
Transfer from Capital Reserve - 5 706,000 700,000 700,000
Total Revenues 550,606 700,000 1,250,606 1,250,606
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Techaical Services 80,988 13,650 04,638 115,000
Construction Services 125,369 549,708 675,077 866,606
Equipment - 269,000 269,000 269,000
Total Expenditures 206,357 832,358 1,038,715 1,250,606
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures % 344249 % {132,358 § Co21L,891 % -

Additlonal Project Information:

Project Number 5550-050-13-5000
Grant Pate July 19, 2013
Bond Authorization Date December 4, 2013
Bonds Authorized § 12,553,000
Bonds Issued $ 12,553,600
Original Authotized Cost $ 580,818
Increase (Decrease) in Authorized Cost 5 669,788
Revised Authorized Cost $ 1,250,606
Percentage Dectense Over Original

Authorized Cost 115.32%
Percentage Completion B3%
Original Target Completion Date August 31, 2015
Revised Target Completion Date N/A
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS
SOUTH BUILDING - STEAM HEAT PIPE REPLACEMENT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE

FROM INCEPTION THROUGH THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2018

Revenues and Other ¥inancing Sources
Bond Proceeds

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Parchascd Profossional and Technical Services
Construcilon Services

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Additionsl Project Information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Boends Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Anthorized Cost
Increase (Deorease) in Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Originat Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

EXHIBIY F-2¢

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Taotals Cost

$ 2,599,563 - 2,599,563 §% 2,599,563
2,599,563 - 2,599 563 2,599,563
216,563 216,563 216,563
2,383,000 - 2,383,000 2,383,600
2,599,563 - 2,599,563 2,599,563

3 - - - b -

5550-050-13-6000
Ialy 19, 2013
December 4, 2013
12,553,000
12,553,000
2,118,600
480,963
2,599,563

o B B 8 L

22.70%
100%
October 15, 2014
N/A

9¢
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EXHIBIT F-2d

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXFENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS
SOUTH BUILDING ROOF REPLACEMENT
FROM INCEPTION THROUGH THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Revenues and Other Financing Soorces
Bond Proceeds

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expendifures

Additional Project Information:

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost

% 2,326,687 3 2,326,687 § 2,326,687
2,326,687 - 2,326,687 2,326,687
206,502 206,502 206,502
2,120,185 - 2,120,185 2,120,185
2,326,587 - 2,326,687 2,326,687

$ - « 3 - 8 -

Project Nurber 5550-050-13-9000
Grant Date July 19, 2013
Bond Authorization Date December 4, 2013
Bonds Authorized § 12,553,000
Bonds Issued § 12,553,000
Original Authorized Cost $ 3,193,156
Increase (Decrease) in Authorized Cost b (866,469)
Revised Authorized Cost 5 2,326,687
Percentage Decrease Over Original

Authorized Cost -27.14%
Percentage Completion 100%
Original Target Completion Date QOctober 15, 2014
Revised Target Completion Date N/A

100
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EXHIBIT E-2¢

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
. AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS
NORTIH BUILDING ROOF REPLACEMENT
FROM INCEPTION THROUGH THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2018

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Bond Proceeds

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditores

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Additional Project Information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Originat Authorized Cost
Increase (Decrease) in Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

Revised
: Authorized
Prior Periods Cugrent Year Totals Cost
5 1,830,700 $ - % 1,830,700 § 1.830,700
1,830,700 - 1,830,700 1,830,760
183,200 183,200 183,200
1,647,500 - 1,647,500 1,647,500
1,830,700 - 1,830,700 1,830,700
h - $ - § - 3 -
5550-050-13-8000
Tuly 19, 2013
December 4, 2013
$ 12,553,000
$ 12,553,000
$ 3,038 644
$  (1,207,944)
$ 1,830,700
-39,75%
100%
Angust 31, 2015
N/A
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EXHIBIT F-2f

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS
SOUTH BUILDING - CURTAINWALL SYSTEM
FROM INCEPTION THROUGH THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20138

Revised
Authotized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Bond Proceeds $ 932,214 3 - § 932214 § 932,214
Total Revenues 932,214 - 932,214 932,214
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 79,040 79,040 79,040
Construction Services 853,174 - 853,174 353,174
Total Expenditares 932,214 - 933,214 932,214

Excess of Revenves Over Expenditures $ - § - % - 8 -

Additional Project Information:

Project Number 5550-050-13-10000
Grant Date July 19, 2013
Bond Authorization Date December 4, 2013
Bonds Authorized $° 12,553,000
Bonds Issued $ 12,553,000
Original Authorized Cost $ 769,178
Increase (Decrease) in Authorized Cost $ 163,036
Revised Authorized Cost $ 932,214
Percentage Increase Over Original

Authorized Cost 21.20%
Percentage Completion 100%
Original Target Completion Date Aungust 31, 2015
Revised Target Completion Date N/A
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS
" REPLACEMENT AND REPAIRS OF EXHAUST FANS

CARPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULY OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE

FROM INCEPTION THROUGH THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Bond Proceeds

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Finsacing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Additional Project Information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bands Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Increase (Decreasa) in Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Decrease Over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Origlnal Tarpet Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

EXBIBIT F-2g

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totels Cost

$ 473,564 473,564 § 473,564
473,564 - 473,564 473,564
61,126 61,126 61,126
412,438 = 412,438 412.438
473,564 - 473,564 473,564

¥ - - - 8 -

$5550-050-13-7000

Tuly 18, 2013
December 4, 2013
§ 12,553,000
$ 12,553,000
& 532,400
$ (58,836)
$ 473,564
~11.05%
100%
August 31, 2015
N/A
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WATCIHUNG BILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Bond Proceeds

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technieal Services
Construgtion Services

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Additional Project Information;
Projeot Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Avthorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost .
Increase (Decrease) in Authorized Cost
Revized Authorized Cost

Percentage Decrease Over Original
Aasthorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

CAFITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
AND FROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

REPAVING OF FRONT (SOUTH) PARKING LOT

FROM INCEPTION THROUGH THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

EXHIBIT F-2k

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost

$ 1,557,491 % - 3 1,557491 § 1,557,491
1,557,491 - 1,557,491 1,557,491
107,954 107,954 107,954
1,449,537 - 1,449.537 1,449,537
1,557,491 - 1,557,491 1,557,491

$ - 3 - $ - b -

5550-050-13-12000
July 19, 2013
December 4, 2013
12,553,000
12,553,000
757,969
799,522
1,557,491

b &9 W3 o 2

105.48%
100%
August 31, 2015
N/A
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EXHIBIT F-2i

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS
_ REAR (NORTH) PARKING LOT REFAVING
FROM INCEPTION THROUGH THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Bond Proceeds b 1,674,049 § - 3 1,074,040 § 1,074,04%
Total Revenues 1,074,049 - 1,074,048 1,074,045
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
' Purchased Professional and Technical Services 64,708 64,708 64,708
Construction Services 1,009,341 - 1,009,341 1,009,341
Tots) Expenditures ‘ 1,074,049 - 1,074,045 1,074,049
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures $ - % - b - % -

Additional Project Information:

Project Number 5550-050-13-13000
Grant Date July 19,2013
Bond Awthorization Date December 4, 2013
Bonds Authorized $ 12,553,000
Bonds Issued $ 12,553,000
Original Authorized Cost $ 649,688
Increage (Decrease) in Authorized Cost ¥ 424,361
Revised Authorized Cost 3 1,074,049
Percentage Decrease Over Original

Authorized Cost 65.32%
Percentage Completion 100%
Original Target Completion Date August 31, 2016
Revised Target Completion Date NA
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND PROJECY STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE

EMERGENCY ACCESS DRIVEWAY AND EGRESS WALKWAYS
FROM INCEPTION THROUGH THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Bond Proceeds

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Additional Project Information:
Praject Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Increase {Devrease) in Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Decrease Over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

EXHIBIT ¥-2j

Revised
Authorized
Prior Petiods Current Year Totals Cost

$ 444,099 § 444099 § 444 (099
444,099 - 444,099 444,099
44,436 . 44,436 44,436
399,663 - 399,663 399,663
444,099 - 444,099 444,099

$ - . - - $ -

5550-050-13-11000
July 19, 2013
December 4, 2013
$ 12,553,000
$ 12,553,000
$ 306,000
% 138,099
$ 444,099

45.13%
100%
Avgust 31, 2016
N/A
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EXHIBIT F-2k

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL ISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
AND FROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS
TURF FIELD
FROM INCEPTION THROUGH THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2018

Revised
: Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sourees
Bond Proceeds ‘ $ 941,060 - % 041,000 $ 941,000
Total Revenues 941,000 - 941,000 241,000
Expeaditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 76,735 76,735 71,575
Construction Services 818,377 - ) 818,377 863,425
Total Expenditures 895,112 - §95,112 941,000
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures $ 45888 § - $ 45888 % -

Additional Project Information:

Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized b 941,000
Bonds Issued b 941,000
Original Awhorlzed Cost $ 941,000
Increase (Decrease) in Authorized Cost § -
Revised Authorized Cost $ 941,000
Percentage Decrease Over Original

Authorized Cost 0.00%
Percentage Completion 95%
Original Target Completion Date June 30, 2017
Revised Target Completion Date : NA
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGHE SCHOOL DISTRICT

TECHNOLOGY, VEHICLES AND SECURITY UPGRADES

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS :

FROM INCEPTION THROUGH THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Lease Purchase Proceeds

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Techuicsl Services
Capital Equipment
Non-Capital Equipment

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Additional Project Information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
1.ease Purchase Proceeds
Original Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

Prior Periods = Current Year

645,000 § 528 * §

Totals

645,528 §

EXBIBIT #-21

Revised
Authorized
Cost

645,600

645,000 528

645,528

645,000

500
423,306
195,031 § 26,691

500
423,306
221,722

500
449,469
195,031

618,837 26,691

645,528

645,000

26,163 § {26,163} ¥

o o

* Increased for interest earned on Lease Purchase Account

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

WA
645,000
645,000
645,528

0%
95%
June 30, 2017
N/A
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* WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL FROJECTS FUND

EXHIBIT F-2m

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE
AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

ACQUISTION OF EQUIPMENT

FROM INCEPTION THROUGH THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3¢, 2018

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Lease Purchase Proceeds

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Capital Equipment
Non-Capital Equipment

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Additional Project Information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Drate
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Lease Purchase Proceeds
Original Authorized Cost
Revised Anthorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Yenar ‘otals Cost
$ - $ 590,000 % 590,000 % 590,000
- 590,000 590,000 590,000
$ 189,246 189,246 211,065
- 378,935 378,935 378,935
- 568,181 568,181 590,000
3 - § 21,819 § 21,8319 § -
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
$ 590,000
3 590,000
k3 580,000
0%
95%
June 30, 2018
N/A
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 36, 2018

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-4

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-5

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2618

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-6
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS



EXHIBIT H-1
WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL BIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF AGENCY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS OF JUNE 30, 2018
Agency
Student
Activity Payroll Total
ASSETS
Cash 8 240,863 § 36,509 $ 277,372
Total Assets ] 240,863 § 36,509 § 277,372
LIABILITIES
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 3 36,509 § 36,509
Due to Student Groups 3 240,863 - 240,863
Total Liabilities A b 240,863 $ 36,509 § 277,372
EXHIBIT H-2
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL STATEMENT IS PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-8
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EXHIBIT H-3

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Balance Balance,
July 1, 2017 Increases Decreasces June 30, 2018

ASSETS
Cash _ $ 2458235 % 713,394 § 718,356 § 240,863
Total $ 245825 % 713,394 § 718,356 § 240,863
LIABILITIES
Due to Student Groups $ 245825 § 713,394 § 718,356 § 240,863
Total $ 245,825 § 713,394 § 718,356 $ 240,863
- EXHIBIT H-4
. PAYROLL AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAIL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Balance, Balance,
July 1, June 30,
2017 Increases Decreases 2018
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings b 15671 § 11,738,425 % 11,738,405 § 15,691
Sammer Savings ) 182,310 182,310
Flexible Spending Account 36,184 118,575 133,941 20,818
Accrued Salaries and Wages - 12,794,700 12,794,700 -
Totals 3 51,855 § 24834010 § 24,849356 § 36,509
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Serinl Bonds - Construction and
Refunding Bonds

Refuading Bonds

School Bonds, Series 2013

Refunding Bonds

School Bonds, Series 2016

Date of
Issug

H29{201%

012

13/1322013

35572016

NI

$

WATCHUNG BIELS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL BISTRICT -

Ampunt of

Tasue

17,196,000

4,365,000

12,553,000

1,970,000

941,000

SCHEDULE OF SERIAL BONDS PAYABLE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36,2018

EXHIBIT -

Annual Maturities Interest Belance, Balanee,
Datc Amggad Rate July 1, 2017 Increas Decrepsed June 30, 2018
11572030 1,535,060 4.00 %
17152020 1,665,000 580
11812021 1,700,560 5,00
HE52022 1,780,060 5.00
WiSR023 1,880,000 500
HES0x4 1,980,000 .00 & 11935000 ¥ 1455000 $ 10.430,000
1152005 2,210,000 3.00 %
1/15/2026 2,285,000 3.00
is/2027 2,565,000 5.00
1/15/2028 2,445,000 5.00 9,305,000 9,305,000
UESZQ1S 765,000 2.50 %
141512020 785,000 Z.50
1572021 &8lo,000 300
11572022 835,000 300
11572023 B6D,000 300
17152024 85,000 3,00
152025 910,000 300
14152026 935,000 3.00
V15R027 965,000 325
11522028 995,000 350
1502029 1,623,000 3.50 19,503,000 740,600 9,763,000
1/15/201920 180,000 1750 %
115202322 196,000 5750
Uis2a23 195,000 LIS
V157202425 205,600 1750
1/1572026-27 230,000 1.150 1,940,000 175,000 1,765,000
941,000 - 941,000 -
5 34624000 - § 3311000 5 31313000




EXHIBET 1-2

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL BISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Amount of
Criginat Balance, Balance,
Year Description Issue July 1, 2017 Additions Retirements  June 30, 2018
2014 Acquisition and [nstallation
of Bquipment 785,000 B 324,575 ¥ 160472 % 164,103
:
2015 Acqguisition of Automated External Defibrillators 9,000 54,459 17,793 36,666 :
H
2016 Technology, Vehicles and Security Upgrades 645,000 520,043 - 126,946 393,097 ;
2017  Acquisition of Equipment 590,000 ~ § 590,000 114,478 475,522

3 899,077 $ 590,000 § 419,680 % 1,069,388




EXHIBIT -3

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2018

Yariance
Originat Pinat Final fo
Budget Transfers Budget chual Actuaf
REVENUES
Local Sources .
Property Tax Levy $ 3,198,501 $ 3198501 % 3,198,501
Miscallancous 1,500 1,500 76 % {i,424)
State Sources
Debt Service Aid 682128 - 682.729 682,728 -
j
Tatal Revenues 3,882,730 - 3,882,730 3,881,306 (1,424 ;

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal 3,381,000 3,311,000 3,311,000
Interest 1,194,575 - 1,194 575 1,194,525 50

Total Expendifureg 4,505,575 - 4,505,575 4,505,525 50

Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues

Over/(Under) Expenditures {622 845) - {622,845) (624,219) (1,374)

OTHER FINANCING SOGURCES (USES) :
Transfors In 621271 - 821271 625,709 4,438 H
"Tataf Other Financing Sources 621271 - 621271 625,709 4,438 ,

Exeess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over/(Under) ;

Expeaditures and Other Financing Sources {Uses) {1,574} - {1,574) 1,490 3,064

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 25,103 - 25,103 25,103 -

Fund Batance, End of Year $ 23529 § - 8 23,525 3 26593 % 3064

Analysig of Restricted Pund Balance

Designatod for Subsequent Year's Budget 3 23,529
Available for Debt Service 3,064
3 26,593

{
i
i
i
i
;



STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Watchung Hills Regional High School District's comprehensive annual financial report
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial

staternents, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the government's
overall financial health,

Contents Exhibits

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the government's financial performance and well-being have changed
over time. I-1toJ-5

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the govern-
ment's most significant local revenue source, the property tax. }-6t0 19

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the afforda-
bility of the government's current levels of outstanding debt and the :
government's ability to issue additional debt in the future. J-10to J-13

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the government's finan-
cial activities take place. J-14 and J-15

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the government's financial report
relates fo the services the government provides and the activities it performs,  J-16 to J-20

Sources; Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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Governmoentsl Activitles
Net fuvestment in Capital Assets
Restrictod
Unrestrioted
Totel Ooventmicntal Activities Met Pasition
Bustosss Type Activii
Irvested in Cupitad Assets
Uneastrivted
“Tatsl Business-Type Activitics Net Position

District-Wide
et Investmen in Capital Assets
Rewriciod

nrestrigted

Tk District Nat Fosition

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGCH SCHOOL DISTRICT

EXEHIBIT -1

RET POSITION BY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YRARS
{Unauditedy
{accrunf baris of accounting)
Fiscal Yeer Bnded Juns 50,
2009 2010, 2011 2012 013 2014 2015 2818 2617 2018

$ 12093902 $ 13736776 S 14020686 S 13983304 S 14957986 S 1776328 5 ISAINS18 S 15113001 § 15,963,886 5 1722192
2,023,524 1,560,306 2,208,514 2,697,846 1,419,503 12,868,779 8,879,506 3,640,402 5,510,769 3452419
667,142 263,602 573420 £68,293 1,673,897 (3,203,546} 12,455,530 (TAILAET) (408,124 £9,142.981)
$_ 14783.988 $ 16061284 5 6803030 0§ J7469443 5 180851386  § 21352361 S 1104ssex 511,362,026 $ 19,666,543 § 11531350
s 28494 s 17554 § 23926 § 2239 § 715 0§ 18628 % BESAE 5 4311 $ 195709 $  3sERI0
15,864 372,301 373,893 204 814 260,377 97,728 102,008 164,823 257,596 261,908
s 174,358 §_ 195835 0§ 195819 5 25213 0§ 298092  § 284007 §  37ess 8 Eaon §. . 353305 5. 530014
S IELIE 513754330 5 14044612 5 13930703 5 MISEL 5 ITSE610 5 15353465 § 15335112 $ 15,759,545 $ 17,580,722
2,023,524 E360,906 2,208,924 2,657,846 1,419,503 12,869,778 8,073,606 3,540,492 3,510,759 482439
B 813,037 1,035,903 742313 1,093,507 1934274 2195820 (12,348,528) (F246.644) {8,150,518) (8,581.077)
5., 4018387 $ 16351139 5 17001849  § 17721656  § 18350478  § 21636368 0§ 11283543 K L 40E0 8 11119346 512152064




EXMABIT 3-3
R WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

CHASGES TN NET POSTEON
FJASETEN FISCAL YEARS
(Uasudited)
faocrual basis of accavntivg}
Fipoal Year Ended June 30,
2000 2018 2211 N 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 z08
Lapenses
Guoverontohl Activitiss
Instroction
Regilar 5 OWTIET  § 1633 5 60ME20 & 647402 5 ISE40M8% 5 ITISETIT 5 ANSTRIR S ZLS68606 5 ARTEE £ 2A285602
Special Education 4,107,498 4,002,033 4,384,482 4,522,158 4.748,750 5,205,996 4,003,587 6268347 7,210,583 7358644
Gther Instruction 90,259 9,920 Q7RIS 100,443 oo, 10 93,584 110,553 V654 36870 29,315
Schodl Sponsored Activities Azd Atiderics §452,115 1,444,265 1A3T,639 1,486,681 1,544,989 sdan 1,896,128 199,157 2,168,631 2,153,492
Sugport Scrvices:
Stutent and Jnstraction Related Sendces A540 4,416,723 42340328 4,402,844 4541004 4557782 5600831 4,212,519 TAMTIS 7,702,787
Gl Admindstration 1,685,260 1,356,908 1,798,149 1,916,028 2,125,687 1,027,058 1,041375 1,213,434 1,235,128 1,259,550
School Adminstrative Services 1582577 1,636,813 1,160,256 1,263,078 1,355,199 2,135,005 L.516,879 2,485,745 280870 2,804,421
Flant Operations And Maimenanca 3308952 4,220,312 4,583,326 4553,743 3432478 4,523,985 4890303 5,199,549 5331514 S03LA2T
Pupll Tragsporiation 1.873,480 186337 1,753,052 1,784,420 1277914 2,051,658 2,004,720 2,183,469 2,353,251 2,561,898
Central Seryices B3T3 261,134 EB3,268 912,078, 1,107,583 1,276,500 1,319,484 1,455,553 1,652,018 1,495,734
Interest On Loog-Term Debt aoed Other Charges 1,552,699 L514431 Ladr 734 1,286,190 1,088,192 1,30% 581 LA26 449 1385 40% L2387 144 1233027
Total Governmenlal Avtiviiies Expeises IEH032 38315270 37839926 38,702.704 38,445,065 40,872 240 AT 70,382 49.23 794 55,538 456 54,877,083
Business-Type Autivithes:
Food Sarvies 665,625 65,568 07,858 33677 LR BSN.673 32,831 915,668 SR I8E 1,418,158
Adult Sehoot 123,543 {17,697 118686 109399 107,625 25 - - - -
‘Total Busimess-Fype Astivitles Expesise 90,566 T3S 26,524 42976 250473 853 388 FIBE3T 915568 D6 188 1,015, 55
= Total District Expesses. 3 388202450 8 39,064,454 -3 INGHEASE 3 2946 5 39605438 5 4LTIIE 5 4RGSGO53 5 0839463  § 56506654 I 55806320
-
~3
Propram Reyenacs
Governmestal Activities:
Chargey For Serviees:
Regalat 5 5438391 % 5687544 3 6156111 % 5804702 ¥ SOi000 0§ GBESZE 5 628873 5 SD24500  F 599791 T 610006
Special Eduealion 678,048 HA0818 551812 557487 4T ALT 594,153 597456 935171 9,084 936,553
Pupi! Trantporation
Operuing Granis And Contributions 405505 414,721 3,154,862 302,562 4,942 848 4,669,449 9,045,85¢ 1,043,261 14,237,650 13,233,721
Capital Grants And Contritarions hd 21088 640,388 2068 5 - = - - - -
‘Yotal Goverameninl Astivities Frogas Reverues 10,393,833 3,283,333 9,574,855 10,232,768 13,306,295 12,046 077 13,041 616 13,003,532 21,054,652 26,470,200
Businesa-Type Activifies:
Chaages For Servicns.
Food Service: 635,258 8,636 LT B13.342 828,347 249,246 2,398 984,566 1,038,559 Lik318
Aduk Sebool 118958 03,237 L RY TR VK -} £6.826 764 . . . .
Tatal Business Type Aztivides Program Revenoes T3, 45 e 236,004 295,135 #7173 230,010 942,310 B5),565 3,008,553 1310318
Toht Distict Progrem Revenues 5 10948675 8 12081306 & H7I0856 03 51047903 0§ 1z393458 5 1259608 S 4EEI046 4 JEGESOSE 5 20WaN1 3 21380518
Pt {ExpenseRereane :
Covernmental Activides S OGLESARD 5 GIRTME 3 QUSSS0TD 5 (R4S} S GASINTIO) F(IBTEISH S GLTIES0N  (LE20ZED  $ G4500,51)  § (4406061
Business-Type Activities . G120 18,558 D480 52,159 36300 (#8378 11420 45,887 TOM7L 91,588

Tot] District- Wide: Nea Expense 3 QIEBAL S (7.01128%) 3 (QT9SSSNR 3 (456 $_GIMeT0 3 RWSMY) O GL07) 3 FLETANED X (412433 § (€315
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Geneeal Kevenues sed Other Changes In Ned Pusifion

Gtrvermuentsl Artvities

Pruptriy Taxes Levied For Gensml Purposes, Nat

Tuxes Lovied For Debt Service
Fedieral sad State Add ~ Unresmricted

Stale Al - Restijeted
Investrnent Exrmings
Miscxlaneouy Incame
Dezttion of Copital Asseds

AdjuTknemsGainL oo - Capits] Assets

Tramin
‘Tolal Soveramental Activities
Buginess-Type Activides
Invesiment Bandngs
Transies
“Total Business-Type Activifier
Total Dirrcs-Wide
Change ln Net Pasition
Governmental Activitics
Busintss- Type Activities

Tonal Diserte

WATCHING HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL RISTRICT

EXHEIT -2

" CHANGES IX NET POSTION
LAST TER FISCAL YEARS
{Uoandiled}
fucerzal basls of acconntisg}
FEisgal Yesr Endedt fune 30,
2069 2610 281 2052 2014 2085 2035 27 2018
5 25098362 ¥ 509498 ¥ 260TE9F 0§ 26360135 & ANe00dA9 5 20641481 5 ZBIIE ¥ 26252 § 29333368 - 5 30505702
LA67.674 #2T,657 2,313,682 232538 1245729 2452108 3,176,201 1,369,345 3300528 3,354,501
R 219,827 9T 36062 SLO6E 53,548
355,048 355,823 58,420 082,723
35,803 AL361 18I 3510 9,124 267159 33,852 26,454 28,851 65,308
80,555 126,733 216,593 213,382 8,253 25,744 152,595 198,462 453,821 255,362
2,000

(71,000 (35,754 - B ds2
pazn) - - - Q008 70 - 5 - .
2RO 218 29,405,233 26,606,218 25,113,348 29526084 50384315 33544925 22 502 33427352 3517318

1,302 ¥ 434 235 kil 13

3400 - : - 10,000 (610 . - - .
35,503 128 484 235 1047¢ (6,507) - - - -
3 prAeir)] 1 28506070 S 2 302§ zeisssd 5 2083418 § 35558000 % 51 g29 % 32425607 F 13477382 f 34772150
5 {2y 8 1571286 % a4, 746 3 5413 ¥ LORT314 0§ 1638153 5 166323 ¥ 705340 5 (1476465 § 363347
(1819 15,49 9,964 %4 a5 279 (15,085) 4349 S5.891 2371 91,159
S (G0 5 1p@IR S G0 3 TWSDY 0§ aulos & 16M0ss & Ien  $ IS 3 (06D § 436405




EXHIBIT 33
WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

FEND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Enundited)
dified arerval hastr of gt
Fiscal Year Ended funs 30,
2009 2010 2613 2012 2013 2034 2015 2016 2017 2018

Gaiezal Fand

Reserved g 2893302 $ 384138

Unreseeved 500,808 543207 -

Restricted 5 2695772 $ 2007604 § 1,568,689 5 336584 § 3764249 $ 4348235 3 4302104 $ 4,440,435

Cormmitted - 260,966 159,831 635,734 114470 509,250 523,856 330,075 38,487

Azxsipgned 164,360 1242475 589,715 362,715 317,123 338,963 228,522 261,953

Unasslpned - - £49.058 595658 81,366 691,556 683367 593,427 727,330 518704
Total General Fund $ 3402,110 3 3990783 3. 370,136 s 4015568 § 3475304 S 4552388 § 3273998 5 6104481 £ 6,104,831 £ 532657%
All Other Governmentnf Funds

Reserved H 345,868 $ 2514 N

Lheeserved £40,127 1,816,492 - - - -

Restriczed - - $ 1210017 £ 1076939 s £29,400 $ 11035719 5 62953252 3 4027082 )3 R0 5 Lz AL
Total A Other Governmental Funds 3 935 001 § 1815406 3 12100]7 3 1676939 5 £19 400 5 _11.03571% $ 6,295,252 5 4,DZT=(!82 5 441,931 £ 300,197

-
—
o« Beginning with Fiseal Year 2010/2011, the District implemented GASB Stslement No, 54, "Fand Bulanee Repoiting aod Governmental Type Definitons,” The
Statement provides mare clearly defined fund bilancs categouies o make the nature and 2xent of the constraints placed on 8 goyemment’s fund balancs

TAREE Transp This blished fund batance ok ions that campeiss & Merarchy based prisaarily on the extent to which # govemment

is bound io oheerye coustraints fuposed upon the use of Teported in g 5 fands. Reclassification of prior year fund balance amounty

to comgly with Stazement No. 54 is nof required.




0E1

Reveauzs
TaxLevy
Tuhipn Charges
Initerest Bxvings
Miscetlmneons
State Soinces
Federal Sourees

Total Revenusy

‘Expendimees

Intiruskion
Regpular Insruction
Special Eduottion bstrostion
Oiher Instruction

Schaok Sponstred Activities sad Athlevics

Soppan Services;
Stdent and Inst. Relnted Services
Gisneral Adcinlatration
School Adminikwative Servicor
Plamt Opecations And Maintzriance
Fupll Toangpariation
Centrat Services

Capitel Quitsy

Dt Service
Dbt Isemee Coxls
Advamce Refunding Escaow

Frincipad

Tmtorest and Gikier Chazpes
Tal} Expadinres
Excrss {Deficdeney) of Revaques.

Over (Undee) Expanditures
Qther Finanting Sowres (Pses)

Tt Other Finensing Saoors (Uses)
Net Change kn Fond Bshinces

Dbt Service as a Parcentagn of
‘Noncapit) Expedditiet

+ F 4

are ol di

WATCHUNG HILLS RECIONAL HIGH SCROOL DISTRICT
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES » GOVERNMENTAR PUNBS
EAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

EXHIRIT 34

(Anandited)
finodified arcrnal Beski of nocatmtingt
Fsgal Year Badleat Junwe 30,
2008 2010 Z0611 2011 20313 20id 015 206 Fov 2018
$ 26988036  $ 25085105  TIR380.853 T8 51448 § 2945317 § 30,093 595 $IL,370519 F L0275 $ a23EM 5 33705208
6,116,439 5378214 ETTI2 5,360,185 363,447 746,518 6486125 6,560,211 6106903 Tu64e
39403 41,365 12m L51% 2324 26,159 31802 26454 28,851 45,308
105,154 METH 38,172 243867 201,338 24597 75 208456 464,660 284,670
3,246,796 4,535,556 2,671,250 3432807 4,539,302 4,253 453 5,344,959 5965424 4362438 7355286
__Mndas  _ sEINTS | ATeE: | OBSYT T sEigsi IS 4Tl SI06M _ ASBGR dmb
37343053 39.729,339 38,481 672 35363117 342379 42,502,173 44205345 43,490,558 46,642 005 A3, $60
15,566, G2 36,141,855 15,237,655 15,520,706 16,206,472 16,460,207 17406096 12353968 17,975,515 17,622,831
3934387 3895322 4,207.221 4405130 4658112 5,115,483 5316455 5,541,153 G017 165 SAILTES
90,5059 92472 98,170 160,747 160916 95,003 100,398 31,475 28258 24398
1,434,692 1,450,853 441,164 1A889T) 1,552,459 1350211 1,701,790 1,736,185 1736389 EEILIIS
3,865 495 4112289 3APLMI2 4,080,064 43133872 4202681 4,687,989 4,996,430 5610,341 6,172,893
1,524,980 1213,052 968,669 1077580 1,200,371 TG THG5E 915,674 Eat it S0z, 007
1303356 1,566,549 1,118,004 1,837,474 2,129,654 297,316 226734 2,152,244 K195 AT 278,652
3,520,762 3826555 4,163210 4,121,642 4,045,956 4,156,533 A366,650 4425394 4358544 4348 315
1,362,301 1866474 KWIRLET 1,785.174 2,052,518 1,006,543 2,165,948 2,302,915 2,518,355
241,000 65,522 0,673 N4 33T 1,276,253 L3413 TI21.402 1,370,588 1,265,462
1,238,701 1383256 2,020,531 1,163,801 3534025 4,178,623 4328657 4052355 2085834
no9N4 1681
1,486,203

1,380,241 1,396,303 1,363,266 1390479 1,520,528 164198 2,318,550 2,335,549 2,569,320 3,730,689
1596385 1532171 1,458,529 1,260.285 1,365,608 1,255 135 1,524,062 1,558,963 1,400,658 1338318
3B892,624 WI02265 9300764 40583030 41620182 44,362,993 45,403,107 ABRTAZOST  \ S0Z24K06 30768636
(1352571} 421,094 {820,641} {.615913) (977,805} (1,260,220) (4I07353) 3343403 B384 801} 1,503,075
270,088 1,000,000 85080 #2650 643,000 290,000

12,553,000 41,006

26,555,000 1,990,008

2,552,267

{#7.391,000) (1,891,130

: B1A52
1554 12,662 1,132M41 400,616 1,228,643 ITAET 17,139 11,607 41,967 1,325,708
37514} {12,642} (11397415 (406,516} (1,230.643) 343,487 (22,135 {13,607) {51967 (1L325705)
- ;
236,000 1,900,000 L] LIS 26T 30.000) 13346208 89,000 1705718 #30.00¢
H 16571) 5 1422004 3 (H36,042 $ 102354 8 (PE7.5¢]) 3 13585400 34018853 5 {La37688) ¥ {sSeds01) § {513.076)
192% T T58% (A2 7.23% T B2k L% £.56% 10A41%

Tesy capital owiley,




WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND OTHER LOCAL REVENUE BY SOURCE

Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30
2009 $
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017

2018

Source: District Records

6,116,439 §
6,328,214
6,717,923
6,360,199
6,363,447
7,476,628
6,886,186
6,960,271
6,796,993

7,236,479

iat

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)
Interest on
Investments Rental
35889 § 80,550
28,699 87,718
18,912 91,730
7,903 102,385
8,481 88,701
8224 95,491
11,726 115,791
14,857 119,781
22,404 126,474
59,954 137,423

Misc,

33,015
134,963
107,734
86,826
140,250
36,604
78,681
324,747
127,863

EXHIBIT J-5

Total
6,232,878
6,477,646
6,963,528
6,578,221
6,547,455
7,720,593
7,050,307
7,173,590
7,270,618

7,561,719
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHGOL PISTRICT
ASSESSED YALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROFERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{Unsudited)
Fiscal
Year
Ercfed Totat Asscssed
June 30 Vrecant Land Kesidential Farm Reg Gfomm Commercial Industrial A Yajus
Lonp Hill Tewnship
2003 §F 19258300 3§ L133336,400 § 5,070,000 $ 40,790 $ 103,857,300 ¥ 16,541,208 5 £621,500 5 [282,425500
2010 20,585,900 LT 120,400 2,795,500 40,700 103,892 800 10541208 6,668,200 287,644,700
201) 19,055,600 1435562700 2,245,100 /K0 144,055,800 16,541,200 £,268,200 1280,722,300
2012 915400 1127,003,200 3,103,600 45,700 193,702,100 16,541,200 £,268,200 1,274,412,400
2613 16,751,400 1,155,697 400 4,315,700 45,700 192,722,500 16,445,900 6,268,200 1,261,551,800
2014 16,714,900 1,111, 286,000 3,754,200 47,400 HLE,400 16,304,600 6,268,200 1,256 525,700
2015 12,534,800 1,509, 792,400 4,113,200 42,300 105,033,300 16,175,004 6,268,200 £,253,965,800
216 15,971,300 1,433,003 500 4,615,700 [y A1) 152,529,400 18,077,600 $,606,400 L610,953,700
2617 14,201,100 1.446,332,700 4,643,300 72,500 135,721,400 18,666,208 9,185,500 §,628,825,200
2018 14,602,700 1,454,297,500 4,434,300 L1020 136,627,900 19,112, 10% $,425,200 1,638,574,400
Warren Tanshin
2609 " 112,692,900 3,386,006,200 27,079,500 224,720 29,792,400 16,236,008 - 4302023920
2610 105,108,900 3,048, 145,500 24,754,800 226,180 65D, 772,200 17,653,900 - 3,862,665.300
2014 58,740,500 3,145,601,700 25,551,000 - G3R,B21400 36,£19,200 - 3,542,833 800
2012 2,394,100 3,202 511,800 26,443,200 198,300 634,340,500 35,303,600 - 4,001,751,600
2013 2271000 3,344,937,52¢ 27,157,100 - 627,241,500 35,451,500 - 4,10%,029,720
M4 61,314,700 34TLUGETOR 27.930,700 189,300 633,533,600 39,665,300 4,234,053,300
2013 56,774,500 3,602,718, 70¢ 30,677,500 97,700 597,292,500 39,694,000 4,356,854,200
2036 0,048,000 3,776,295,600 30,311,500 0,700 598,589,400 45,268,500 4,500,695,166
017 58,593,600 3,851, 747,020 30,480,000 125,000 602,205,530 0,560,000 4,584,176,020
2013 61,169,000 3,891,425,9750 20,811,000 506,208,900 44,399,000 4,626,023,890
Borpugh of Wytchung
2009 41,251,800 1,277,353,900 - - 328,769,100 7,174,500 60,600,008 1,716, 149,700
2010 35,609,900 1,184,481400 - - 205,309,400 367,200 56,964,000 1,573,931,%00
2011 35,484,200 1,204,394,400 - - 290,376,800 £367,300 45,255,800 - 1,985,878,500
2012 35,514,800 3221.449,700 - - 282,756,200 6,273.400 459,255,800 1,595,256,900
2013 31,860,708 5 214,066,308 377,208 5,280 704,439,700 6,237,300 47,804,000 1,594,406,950
2014 31,400,800 246,894,300 435,000 5,280 296,015,200 6,137,500 27,400,006 1,628,308,080
2015 32,019,400 1,280,593,70% 334,100 5,280 297,786,500 £355,500 47,850,005 1,664,948,48%
2016 31,504,200 134,125,900 342,600 3,080 303,605,500 6,414,300 47,850,000 1,723,847, 750
017 30,784,300 1265322,000 343,000 5280 304,477,700 £,439,400 48,325,008 1,755,616,688
it 27,590,500 1,390,512,700 350,900 3450 310,132,308 £,509,20p GL600,000 1,796,713,559
Source: County Abswact of Ramables

& Tax yaLes ate per $100

Public Dsilities

§ 4268514
4,454,525
4,509,341
474,115
1,796,526
3,141,260
3,141,460
4,068,200
4,085,433
4,130,534

6986,526
1.378,865
6,013,698
5,764,382
S478,508
5,568,036
5,685,495
5515916
5,553,500
5,616,235

1,562,784
1762.687
1,464,637
1,577,286
14BL430
1151575
1,138,954
1,140,757
L137,931
1,170,134

3

et Valuation
Taxable

1287.694,014
292,090,028
3,292.281,841
1,279,196,515
1265348326
1,259,967,160
1,257,107,261
1,615,021,900
1,632,290,623
1,642,704334.

4,308,808,548
3 370,044,565
3,948,847.493
4,D07,517,982
4,112,508,628
4,739,621,316
4,362,539,695
4,505.31L,076
4,5%9,729,5720
4,641,649,125

177,712,484
1,586,694,587
1,567,347,337
1,596,834,186
1,595,851,439
1,620,459,655
1,866,081.434
1,724,988,537
1,756,744,612
1,797,883, 724

EXHRBIT -6

Estimuted Actual
{County
Egualized) Yalue

5 1.894,469,220
1,839,145,332
1,792 478,629
1,695,716,200
1,623,351.325
1,597,186,047
1,772,280,568
1,782,295,522
1,746,316,280
1,738,334,022

4,972,610,638
4,567,425,015
4,171,743,932
4,151,349,860
4,194,970,394
4,288,083, 148
4,585,997,627
4,562,392,262
4,586,010,824
#,626,519,585

1,942,929,426
1.824,791,793
1,634,856.60%
1,674,592.266
1,641,460,927
1,634355,194
1,687,323 485
1,721,857 944
1,754, 739,42
1,796, 733,437

Total

Schaol

Tax R ®

D365
o4
0.395
0.388
Q398
0,408
D414
0412
¢d417
X v

2.318
0.35%
0363
8377
9384
0,37
0379
0366
0346
0372



WATCHUNG BILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING OUTSTANDING BONDED DEBT

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2617
(Unaundited)

Net Direct Debt of School District as of
December 31, 2017

Net Oveslapping Debt of School District

Long Hill Township

Warren Township
Borough of Watchung

Total Direct and Overlapping Bond Debt as of
December 31, 2017

Sourrces: County and Municipal Annual Debt Statetnents, December 31, 2017
{1} Long Hill Township - Morris County

Warren Township - Somerset County
Watchung Borongh - Somerset County

123

$ 27,889,103
31,374,519

26,523,482

EXHIBIT J-7

§ 33,683,000

85,787,104

$ 119,470,104

S ——



WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS,
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

EXHIBIT J-8

{Unaudited)
2018 2009
Taxable % of Total Taxable % of Total .
Assessed Pistrict Met Assessed Distriet Net
Taxpayer Value Assessed Value Value Assessed Value

Long Hill Township
Vafley and Plainfield Associate § 26,704,600 L.63% $ 21,204,400 1.65%
Sticing Center Associates 13,793,200 0.84% 9,907,400 0.77%
Bell Atlantic/Verizon 824,500 0.05% 4,268,514 0.33%
Stirling Manor (340-360) 2,938,500 G.I18% 4,000,000 0.31%
Stirling Manor (324-336) 2,938,500 0.18%.
Transcontinental Gas Pipeline 4,040,500 0.25% 3,764,500 0.29%
Tifa Lid, 4,147,300 0.25% 3,030,560 0.24%
RHK/A K. Stamping 1,317,760 0.08% 2,312,300 0.18%
Dagwaod Prop. {Ind, Soccer, LLC) 1,200,000 0.07% 2,246 900 0.17%
Parenon C/O Walgreens 3,380,500 0.21%
M&M Realty Management 3,339,600 8.20%
Millingter Savings Bank 2,941,800 0.18% 2215,500 0.17%
Filrydan, Inc (Realty, LLO) 2,660,700 0.16% 2,197,400 0.17%

$ 70227400 4.28% $ 55147414 4.28%
Warren Township
King George Property Co. $ 128,483,300 2.98%
‘Warmen CC Acquisitions, LLC $ 106,936,700 2.30%
Mt. Bethel Corp 67,999,900 1.46% 89,880,700 209%
Samerseat Assoc. ¢/0 Chubb 37,000,000 0.80% 87,960,000 2.04%
Liberiy Assoc 43,780,000 1.02%
Normandy Real Estate Partners 70,095,500 1.51%
Normandy Warren Holdings, LLC 18,079,200 0,42%
GC Net Lease {(Warren) Investors 26,796,800 0.58%
Vicendese Family LTD 23,606,700 0.55%
Warren 2001 C/O Thomsot Reuters (16,147,000 0.35%
30 Independence C/O Mack Realty 37,391,000 0.87%
S/K Warren Assaciates, LLC 13,400,000 0.29% ) 0.00%
K Hovnanian at Warren 28,805,300 0.67%
Warren 2001, LLC " 19,473,600 0.45%
10 Independence SPE 18,079,200 0.42%
Brightview Warrep LLC 18,500,000 0.40%
HCRI NY-NJ Proportics, LEC 19,800,000 0,43%
Mitsni Sumitono Ins of America 12,267,000 0.26%

$ 388.942,900 8.38% $ 495,538,400 11.50%
Watchung Borpugh
Watchung Square Associsles ¥ 68,493,000 3.81% $ 91,346,000 5.32%
WM Crysinl Ridge, 11.C 60,660,000 3.53%
PF Watchung Investors 61,600,000 3.43%
Levin Properties, LP 56,894,500 3.16% 59,178,800 3.45%
Watchung VF LLC ' 27,345,400 1.59%
‘Watchung UE, LLC 23,980,100 133%
Sears Rocbuck & Co 16,390,000 0.91% 20,400,000 115%
Walmart 16,622,000 0.92%
HD Development of Maryland, Inc. 14,032,500 0.78% 18,668,000 1.09%
Target Corp 15,529,060 0.36% 18,480,000 1.08%
680 Mountain Roulevard, LLC 12,240,000 0.68%
Weldon Materials Inc 10,294,900 0.57% 14,437,700 0.61%
Mini U Storage New Jersey RE L1LC 10,673,000 0.59% 9,612,000 0.56%
Twin Brooks Country Club, LP 4,128,000 0.23% 8,100,000 0.47%
Extra Space Storage Properties 7,028 000 0.39% 0.00%

§ 317,905,000 17.68% $ 324,167 500 {B.87%

Seurce: Municipal Tax Assessor
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Coliected within the Fiscal Year
Year Taxes Lovied of the Levy Collections in
Ended for the Fiscal _ Percentage Subsequent
June 30, Year Amount of Levy Years
2009 $ 26,988,036 $ 26,988,036 100,00% N/A
2010 28,065,105 28,065,105 100.00% - N/A
2011 28,360,853 28,360,853 100.00% N/A
2012 28,893,448 28,893,448 100.60% N/A
2013 29,345,227 29,345,227 100.00% . N/A
2014 30,093,596 30,093,596 100.00% N/A
2015 31,370,519 31,370,519 - 100.00% N/A
2016 31,927,349 31,927,349 100.00% N/A
2017 32,533,994 32,533,994 100,00% N/A
2018 33,705,203 33,705,203 100.00% N/A

125

EXHIBIT J-9
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaundited)
Governmental Activities

Fiscal
Year General Lease Bond Debt

Ended Obligation Purchase Capital Anticipation ~ Authorized But

June 30, Bonds Agreements Leases Notes (BANs) Not Issued Total District

2009 $ 33,581,000 51,023,285 476§ 34,604,761
2010 32,731,000 1,676,392 476 34,407,868
2011 31,816,000 1,223,126 476 33,039,602
2012 30,005,000 807,647 476 30,813,123
2013 28,915,000 377,519 - 29,292,519
2014 40,093,000 893,538 - 40,986,536
2015 38,033,000 723,946 - 38,756,946
2016 36,914,000 1,198,397 - 38,112,397
2017 34,624,000 899,077 - 35,523,077
2018 31,313,000 1,069,388 - 32,382,388

Source: District records

* Total Population of Long Hill, Warren and Watchung

Population *

30,969
34,223
29,984
30,311
30,569
30,693
30,738
30,682
30,766
30,725

EXHIBIT J-16

Per Capita

3

L117
102
1,102
1,017

958
1,338
1,261
1,242
1,155
1,054



EXHIBIT J-11
WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaundited)

General Bonded Debt Quistanding

Fiscal Percentage of

Year General . Net General Actual Taxable

Ended Obligation Bonded Debt Value of

June 30, Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property Per Capita

2009 $ 33,581,000 $ 33,581,000 0.46% $ 1,084
2010 32,731,000 32,731,000 0.49% 1,048
2011 31,816,000 31,816,000 0.47% 1,061
2012 30,005,000 30,005,000 0.44% 990
2013 28,915,000 28,515,000 0.41% 946
2014 40,093,000 46,093,000 0.56% 1,306
2015 38,033,000 38,033,000 0.52% 1,237
2016 36,914,000 36,914,000 0.47% 1,203
2017 34,624,000 34,624,000 0.43% 1,125
2018 31,313,000 31,313,000 0.39% 1,019

Source: District records
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EXHIBIT J-12

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUATION

LAST TEN YEARS
{Unaudited)
Regional Local
Calendar School Schoel
Year Total District Distriet Municipality County
Long Hill Township
2009 2.66 0.492 1.114 0.720 0.336
2010 273 0.522 1.145 0.731 0.327
2011 2.82 0.562 1.180 0.744 0.329
2012 2.86 0.587 1,179 0.766 0.327
2013 2.96 0.594 1.250 0.788 0.324
2014 2.87 (4.593 .16l 0.788 0.326
2015 2.93 0.576 1.217 _ 0.806 0.333
2016 2.35 0.454 (1.960 0.046 0.282
2017 2.36 0,467 0.974 0.637 0278
2018 2.38 0.472 0.986 0.640 0.278
Warren Township
2009 1.82 0.365 0.826 0.246 0,385
2010 2.05 0.411 0.945 0.295 0.394
2011 2.01 0.393 0.940 0,294 0.378
2012 1.99 0.388 0,934 0.289 0.382
2013 2.02 0.391 (.923 0314 0.389
2014 2.04 0.404 0.914 0.319 0.400
2015 2.05 (.414 (4.902 0.328 0.404
2016 2.01 0.412 0.875 0.318 0.404
2017 1.99 0.417 0.859 0311 0.401
2018 1.99 0.421 0.859 0.313 0.394
Borough of Watchung
2009 1.76 ' 0.318 0.646 0.427 0371
2010 1.92 0.351 0,723 0.462 0.385
2011 196 0.363 0.728 0.491 0.379
2012 201 0377 0,732 0.519 0.386
2013 2.07 0.384 0.748 0.546 0.391
2014 2.09 0.376 (.748 0.572 0.398
2015 2.12 0.379 0.749 0.588 0.402
2016 2.09 v (.366 0.732 0.594 0.399
2017 1.98 0.360 0.613 0.606 0.400
2018 199 0372 0.612 0.610 0.397

Source: Tax Collector
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGEONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

EXHIBIT J-13

LAST TEN YEARS
(Uusdited)
B June 30,
2008 2068 2010 praill] 2012 2 2014 2015 2016 282
Dbt Limit $266,354334 8 2855541716 $247,132,846 $153417261  $230,189.077 $226793.730  $228,360,650 3 234248397 5 139247511 S 24,440,371
Total Net Debl Applicable to Linit 53,581,476 33,731 416 ILBIGATS 30,005,476 2815478 40,095,000 58.4133,000 36,914,000 34,624,000 33,313,000
Legal Debt Margin $226972858 3 222810240 $2i8316070  $123415787 S200271505 F 186700730 SI90SR7650 5 197334897 § 204423971 0§ 219,127,571
Total Nez Debt Applicable to the Limit
85 8 Percentage of Debr Limit 12.85% 12.81% 12.E87% 19.56% 12.56% 17.68% 16.64% 15.76% 14A47% 297%
Legal Debt Margin Caleulatisn, December 31, 2H7
2015 B,035,645,771
2016 2035273456
2017 ED13,112933
5 24,144,037.140
Average Equalized Valuation of Taxable Fropety 3 E048,012380
3%, of Equalized Vatuation Brasis 241,440,371
Less Net Dsbt 31,313,000
Remaining Borrewing Power §

Sowrce:  Equalized valuation hases were obinfred froms the Annval Report of the Stz of New Jersey,

Depariment of Treasury, Diviston of Texatfion

210,127.373



EXHIBIT J-14
WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN YEARS
{Unaudited)
Year Ended ‘Unemployment Per Capita
December 31, Rate Income (2) Population (1)

Long Hill Township
2008 3.7% 74,210 8,550
2009 6.3% 71,361 8,579
2010 6.4% 74,460 8,720
2011 6.2% 77,207 8,761
2012 6.4% 80,027 8,776
2013 6.8% 80,868 8,794
2014 4.4% 83,687 8,785
2015 3.9% 87,896 8,773
2016 3.6% 89,665 8,750
2017 3.6% N/A 8,711

Warren Township
2008 2.4% 73,658 15,689
2009 4.3% 69,579 15,871
2010 4.3% 69,610 15,369
2011 4.2% 71,919 15,666
2012 4.4% 75,678 15,869
2013, 5.3% 78,762 15,953
2014 4.5% 82,666 15,999
2015 3.9% 87,930 15,966
2016 3.6% 80,268 16,057
2017 33% ' N/A 16,029

Borough of Watchung
2008 3.6% 73,658 6,730
2009 6.4% 69,579 6,773
2010 6.4% 69,610 5,851
2011 : 6.3% 71,919 5,884
2012 6.6% 75,678 5,924
2013 4.2% 78,762 5,946
2014 4.5% 82,666 5,954
2015 4.2% 87,930 5,943
2016 4.0% 90,268 5,959
2017 3.4% N/A 5,985

Sources:

(1) US Census Reports
{2) State of New Jersey
N/A - Not Available
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, EXHIBIT J-15

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT '

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS,

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

{(Unaudited)

2018 2009

Percentape of Percentage of

Total Municipal Total Manicipal

Employer Employees Employment Employees Employment

Long Hilf Township

INFORMATION NOT AVAILABLE

INFORMATION NOT AVAILABLE

Borough of Watchuny |
INFORMATION NOT AVATLABLE
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EXHIBIT J-16

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOGL DISTRICT
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTIONPROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS®
{Unaudited)
2009 2010 . 201 2012 2413 2014 2015 W16 2017 2018
Fapction/Program
Instrostion
Regular 153 153 142 143 148 148 148 147 146 138
Special Bducation 35 35 35 35 37 41 12 42 43 43
Other Special Education 9 9 9 b4 9 9 10 10 . 10 10
AdultContinning Education Programs 1 1 1 1 H - - - -
Suppost Services:
Stodent and Instmction Rejpted Services 9 i9 19 19 i 9 19 1 19 1%
General Administration 5 9 9 9 9 i0 10 30 10 19
Schoel Adimicistrative Servicss i2 ) 3 iz 12 14 4 14 3 12 iz
Other Administrative Services 9 9 3 -1 6 & [ [ 3 3
Central Services 8 & & 6 ] § ] 5 6 6
Administative nformation Technology 4 3 3 5 5 5 5 4 -3 ]
Piam Operations And Maintenance i5 15 15 15 15 i5 15 i3 15 14
o Pupit Transpostation 10 15 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
'Y
Total 280 288 262 261 278 274 276 275 274 265

Soures: District Persennel Records




BET

Fiscal Year Enrolimeat™
2009 2033
H10 2,069
2011 2,057
2012 2,664
013 2,136
2014 2375
815 2,197
2016 2,337
2017 2,064
2038 24014

Sources: District records

Note:

Expenditures®

H

Operating

QPERATING STATISTICS
1LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
' (Unaudited)
Pupit
Trather
Cost Per Tercenizge Teacking Ratlo High
Pupil Change Staff Sehool
353821685 § 1T AN L0AT% 189 1l
35049943 1654t -2.66% 188 1:1
34,454,468 16,750 L% 177 12
35413197 17,158 2143% 180 12
37,023,339 17333 1.62% 1858 2
37921187 17435 0.5%% 189 112
40,281,827 18,335 5.16% 150 112
40,539,767 18961 341% 189 L1t
42175472 10,434 1I1% 189 1:1%
43,612,204 21,655 597% 181 1:11

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHODL DISTRICT

2 Enroliment based on arnual Octaber distiel count.
b Opemting expenditures equal total sxpenditures less dabt service end capital outlay.

¢ Costper pupil rep

P

divided by

EXAIT J.17

Average Daily % Change in Student
Average Dally Attendance Average Dally Attendatce
Enroliment {(ADE) {ADA) Enroltment Percentage

2,033 1,967.4 ~136% 96.17%
2,069 2,003.4 LI7% 96.83%
2057 19836 -0.58% 96.43%
2,064 1,9900 034% 2641%
2,i36 2,044.1 3% 85.70%
2178 2,088.0 1.83% 96.05%
2397 2,103.0 1.01% 95.71%
2,137 20570 2T3% 96.26%
1,064 1977.0 3.42% 93.78%
2,014 19180 2A42% 95.23%




EXHIBIT 18

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION
LAST TEN FISCAI,: YEARS
(Unaudited)
2009 2000 2011 2012 2013 2014 2HS 2816 2017 2018

District Bufiding
High School

Square Feat 391915 LIS 391515 91915 391915 - 391,915 391,915 NS 391915 391,915

Capacity {students) 2,506 2,506 2,506 2,506 2,506 2,506 2,506 2,506 2,506 1,506

Enrotiment 2,033 2,069 2,057 2,069 2,136 2,178 2,187 2,137 2,064 2,014 ]

i

Square Feet 4,200 4,200 4,200 4,200 4,200 4,200 4,200 4,200 4,200 4,204 ‘
Fi ;

Sequare Fest 2000 2000 2,000 2,600 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,600 2,000 2,008 i

Number of Bchools al June 30, 2018
Senfor High School = 1

Source; District Records
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WATCHUNG HRILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

EXHIBIT J-19

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{(Unandited)

Year Amount
2009 $ 954,060
2010 1,113,820
2011 1,320,963
2012 1,311,846
2013 1,379,308
2014 1,475,556
2015 1,594,056
2016 1,567,514
2017 1,438,033
2018 1,356,436
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WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE
JUNE 30,2018

School Package Policy - SAIF
Property, Inland Marine
Boiler & Machinery
Flood
Environmental Impairment Liability
Critical Incident Management

Automobile
Collision
Comprehensive

Employee Benefits Liability

School Leader's Professional Liability
Employee Dishonesty

Money & Securities

Sexual Abuse and Molestation

Worker's Compensation

Commercial Umbrella Excess - (G/L,, Auto, W/C)

Commercial Umbrella Excess - CAP

Public Employees' Faithful Performance Blanket
Position Bond - Selective Insurance Co,

Business Administrator
Treasurer of School Monies

Source: School Insurance Records
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Coverape

500,000,000
100,000,000
10,000,000
1,000,000
25,000

5,000,000

5,000,000
5,000,000
500,000
2,500,000
10,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000

50,600,000

100,000
300,000

EXHIBIT J-20

Deductible

$2,500
2,500
2,500
16,000

1,000
1,000

1,000

5,000
2,500
1,000
5,000

H
£
i
H
i
i
f
i
i
§
t
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— LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS,LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS EXHIBIT K-1

REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTANTS
DIETER £ LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA - BELIZABETH A. SHICK, CPA, RMAL PSA
GARY 1. VINCE TPA, RMA, PSA ROBERT W. HAAG, CPA, PSA
GARY W. HIOGINS. CPA. RMA, PSA DEBORAH K. LERCH. {PA, PSA
JTEEFREY C. BLISS. CPA. BMA.PSA RALPH M. PICONE. CPA, RMA. PSA
PALL 1 LERCH. CPA.RMA. PEA . DERRA GOLLE, P
DONMNAL, JAPHET. CPA, PEA . MARK SACO. CPA
JULIUS B, CONSONI, CPA, PSA . SHERYL M. LEIMIG, CPALPSA
ANDREW D, PARENTE, CPA, RMA, PSA N ROBERT LERCH, £PA

CHRIS SOHN, CPA

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS _
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Trustees

Watchung Hills Regional High School District
Warren, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the

standards applicable to financial audits contained-in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General

of the United States and audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State

of New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and

the aggregate remaining fund information of the Watchung Hills Regional High School District as of and for the fiscal

year ended June 30, 2018 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Watchung

Hills Regional High School District’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated Januvary 28,
2019,

Interival Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our andit of the financial statements, we considered the Watchung Hills Regional High
School District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Watchung Hills Regional High School District’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Watchung Hills Regional High School
District’s internal control.

A deficiency in_jnternal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is-a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented; or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance,
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QOur consideration of infernal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies,
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses, However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance ahout whether the Watchung Hills Regional High School District’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tesis of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts, However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our andit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and
audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

However, we noted certain matters that are not required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards that we
reported to management of the Watchung Hills Regional High School District in a separate report entitled, “Auditor’s
Management Report on Administrative Findings — Financial, Compliance and Performance” dated January 28, 2019.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Watchung Hills Regional High School District’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Watchung Hills Regional High School District’s internal contro! and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. )

ik, Ve lggiin, P
CH, VINCI & NS, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Public School Accountants

ﬂ Ohes
ary J/Vinci

Public School Accountant
PSA Number CS00829

Fair Lawn, New Jersey
January 28, 2019
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LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS,LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS EXHIBIT K-2
REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTANTS

DIETER P. LERCH, CPA, BMA, PSA ELIZABETH A SHICK, £BA, BMA, PSA
GARY I, VINCL CPA, RMA,PSA ‘ RORERT W, HAAG, CPA, P54
GARY W, KIGHGINS, C2A, RMA, PSA DEBORAT K. LERCH, CPA, PSA
JEEFREY C. BLISS, CEA, RMA, PSA RALPH M. PICONE, CPA, RMA, PSA
BALILY. LERCH, CBA, EMA, FSA. ° DEBRAGOLLE, CPA
DONMNAL. JAPHET, CPA, PSA CINDY JAMACEE, CPA, RMA
JULTUS B. CONSONL, CBA, PSA MARK SACO, CPA
ANDREW D. PARENTE, CPA, RMA, PSA ' SHERYL M. LEIDIG, CBA, BSA

ROBERYLERCH, CPA

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT
ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AS
REQUIRED BY NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Honorable President and Merbers
of the Board of Trustees
Watchung Hills Regional High School District
Warren, New Jersey

Repori on Compliunce for Each Major State Program

We have audited the Watchung Hills Regional High School District’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could have
a direct and material effect on each of the Watchung Hills Regional High School District’s major state programs for the
fiscal year ended Jume 30, 2018. The Watchung Hills Regional High School District’s major state programs are
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs,

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of state statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its state financial assistance applicable to its state programs.

Auditor’s Respousibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Watchung Hills Regional High School District’s
major state programs based on our andit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of
New Jersey; and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, Stafe Grants and
State Aid, Those standards, U.S. Uniform Guidance and New Jersey Circular require that we plan and perform the andit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program occurred. An andit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the Watchung Hills Regional High School District’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

17-17 ROUTE 208 'FAfR LAWN, NJ 07410 « TELEPHONE (2013 791-7160 » FACSIMILE (201) 791-3035
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state program,

However, our audit does not provide a fegal determination of the Watchung Hills Regional High School District’s
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major State Program

In our opinion, the Watchung Hills Regional High Schoo! District complied, in all material respects, with the types of

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state programs
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Watchung Hills Regional High School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Watchung Hills Regional High Schoo! District’s internal control
over corpliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major state program
to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for sach major state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control

over compliance, Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Waichung Hills Regional High
School District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in _internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow masagement or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a fimely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal confrol over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal

control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance Required by New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, cach major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Watchung Hills Regional High School District, as of and for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2018 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the School District’s basic
financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated January 28, 2019, which contained unmeodified opinions on those
financial statements, Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and
schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance as required by New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 are presented for
purposes of additiopal analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and schedule of expenditures of
state financial assistance are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as & whole. -

Uk, Ve~ Gl ¢
LERCH, VINCI & I S, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Public School Accountants

(s

Public School Accountant
PSA NumberCS00829

~ Eair Lawn, New Jersey
January 28, 2019
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EXHIBIT K-3

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCERODL DISTRICT
SCHEDILE OF EXPENDITIIRES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Balrnee at Jyne 38, 1618
Federa) Feoderal Repayment Memo
Festeral/GrantonFass. Througl Granor/ CFDA FAIN Award Belance, Cwrryever  Cash Budgttary  of Prior Year  {Accounts  Dneormed Doz ty TTGAAT
Protram This DNumbrr Humber Gepnt Perjed  Ampust  Jale].2617  Assownt  Received Expendifres  Balances  Heceivabid  Revecue Graotor BReccivably
U5, Pegartment of Eduestion *
Passcd-Throngh Slute Departivent -
of Education .
* Bpecial Revenoe Fund .
NCLE, Tille} S40304  SMIOAIG0030  THNSSBVINT 5 4867 5 (1,575) § 1575 .
NLLE, Tiflel B4010A  SDIDATTONND  TMITSA08 £1,623 HI0 § WesT 5 Em) 5 181 % (18N
NCLE.Tiel-A BIGTA  SIETBIROZT  WRHASSBAT 319 $50,213) 30213 . -
NCLE.Talell-A BAISTA  SIGTRITODRE  TT-E30NS 22,597 & %4 @255 14,864 . feskrr
RNCLB, Tale I¥ : Ba424 SAZAAITOG3]  TANT-GALE 10,000 (10,0003 10,000 -
LDBA Pat B, Brais 40074 HODIALSNDE 11653017 193,261 {49352} 49292 . .
ID-BA Tar B, Basic SL7A HOBAITOWN  AN7S50AR 37,793 263,088 576524 (114,705) 69 LA 1% -
LD.E.A Pan B, Batio 8LO27A, Y SANTARVIR 348,509 19,407 - - - & o - - o= -
— -
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Tive Notes 0 the Schedles of Federal Awards and State Finzncial Assistance ars ar Integeal Part of this Statement
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EXHIBIT K-5
WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULLES OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 GENERAL

The accompanying schedules present the activity of all federal and state financial assistance programs of the Watchung Hills
Regional High School District. The District is defined in Note 1(A) to the District’s financial statements. All federal
financial assistance received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed

through other government agencies is included on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance.

NOTE 2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules are prepared and presented using the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of
programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting, These basis of
accounting are described in Notes 1{C) to the Board's financial statements. The information in these schedules is presented
in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (U.S. Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB
Circular 15-08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants. State Grants, and State Aid”. Therefore, some
amounts presented in these schedules may differ from the amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financial
staterments.

NOTE 3 RELATIONSHIP TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fimd on a GAAP basis, Budgetary comparison
statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the geveral fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related
legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by Jaw or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas
for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on a modified accrual basis with the exception of the revenue
recognition of the delayed state aid payments in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.I.S.A. 18A:22-
44.2. For GAAP purposes, those payments are not recognized until the subsequent year due to thé state deferral and
recording of certain state aid payments in the subsequent year, The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying
schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, which may include the delayed state aid payments, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue
fund also recognizes the delayed state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2,

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is a decrease of $109,832 for the general fund.
See the Notes to Required Supplementary Information for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual
basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the
District’s financial statements on a GAAP basis as presented as follows:

Federal State Total
General Fund $ 6749986 § 6,749,986
Special Revenne Fund $ 414,014 126,571 540,585
Debt Service Fund - 682,729 682,729
Total Financial Assistance 3 414,014 $ 7,559,286 $ 7,973,300
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EXHIBIT K-5
WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 4 RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules may not necessarily agree with the amounts reported in the related federal
and state financial reports due to timing differsnces between the District’s fiscal year and grant program years.

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION

TPAF Social Securify confributions in the amount of $1,180,322 represents the amount reimbursed by the State for the
employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The amount
reported as TPAF Pension System Contributions in the amount of $2,454,263. TPAF Post-Retirement Medical Benefits
Contributions in the amount of $1,585,156 and TPAF Long-Term Disability Insurance in the amount of $3,047 represents
the amount paid by the State on behalf of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

NOTE 6 ON-BEHALF PROGRAMS NOT SUBJECT TO STATFE SINGLE AUDIT

On-behalf State Programs for TPAF Pension, Post-Retirement Medical Benefits and Long-Tesm Disability Insurance
Contributions are not subject to a State single audit and, therefore, are excluded from major program determination. The
Schedule of State Financial Assistance provides a reconciliation of State financial assistance reported in the District’s
financial statements and the amount subject to State single audit and major program determination,

NOTE 7 DE MINIMIS INDIRECT COST RATE

The District has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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) EXHIBIT K-&

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Part I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statement Section

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes ne
2) _Signiﬁcant deficiency(ies) identified? yes none reported
Noncompliance material fo basic finaneial

statements noted? yes no

State Awards Section

Dallar threshold nsed to distinguish between Type A

and Type B programs: $ 750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk audites? X yes no
Internal Control ever compliance:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes Do
2} Significant deficiency(ies) identified that were

not considered to be material weaknesses? yes none reported

Type of auditor's report on compliance for major programs; Unmeodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with N.J. OMB Circular Leiter 15-08 ves no

Identification of major programs:

State Grant/Project Number
18-495-034-5120-044

18-495-034-5094-003

Federal Awards Section

Not Applicable

Name of State Program

Extraordinary Aid

TPAF FICA Reimbursement
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EXHIBIT K-7
WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Part 2 - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, iliepal acts, violations of provisions of

contracts and grant agreements and abuse related to the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

There are none
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EXHIBIT K-7

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF ¥YINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Part 3 - Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance including

questioned costs, related to the audit of major state programs, as required by U.S. Uniform Guidance and New Jersey
OMB Circular Letter 15-08,

CURRENT YEAR FEDERAL AWARDS
Not Applicable '
CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

There are none,
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EXHIBIT K-8

WATCHUNG HILLS REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state
awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6,12 of Govermment Auditing Standards, U.S.
Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular Letter 15-08. .

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

There were none,
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